Smart System for Monitoring a Home Patient Room Using Sensors and Medical Devices

Editors

Ali Mahmood Hussein Shabeeb,

Department of Engineering of Medical Device Technologies, College of Engineering, Al-Hadi University, Iraq

Muntadher Imad Abdulridha Khalaf

Department of Engineering of Medical Device Technologies, College of Engineering, Al-Hadi University, Iraq

Ali HaydeQasim Al- Naser

Department of Engineering of Medical Device Technologies, College of Engineering, Al-Hadi University, Iraq

Atheer Akram Mohammed Hussein

Department of Engineering of Medical Device Technologies, College of Engineering, Al-Hadi University, Iraq

Taha Talal Nayyef Dheya

Department of Engineering of Medical Device Technologies, College of Engineering, Al-Hadi University, Iraq

Bright Sky Publications TM New Delhi Published By: Bright Sky Publications

Bright Sky Publication Office No. 3, 1st Floor, Pocket - H34, SEC-3, Rohini, Delhi, 110085, India

Editors: Ali Mahmood Hussein Shabeeb, Muntadher Imad Abdulridha Khalaf, Ali HaydeQasim Al-Naser, Atheer Akram Mohammed Hussein and Taha Talal Nayyef Dheya

The author/publisher has attempted to trace and acknowledge the materials reproduced in this publication and apologize if permission and acknowledgements to publish in this form have not been given. If any material has not been acknowledged please write and let us know so that we may rectify it.

© Bright Sky Publications

Edition: 1st

Publication Year: 2025

Pages: 104

Paperback ISBN: 978-93-6233-351-3

E-Book ISBN: 978-93-6233-783-2

DOI: https://doi.org/10.62906/bs.book.418

Price: ₹525/-

Contents

S. No.	Chapters	Page No.
	Abstract	01
1.	Introduction	03-05
2.	Background and Motivation	06
3.	System Overview	07-11
4.	Sensor Technologies	12-15
5.	Medical Devices Integration	16-20
6.	Data Management	21-29
7.	User Interface Design	30-36
8.	Real-time Monitoring and Alerts	37-42
9.	Security and Privacy Considerations	43-46
10.	Case Studies	47-52
11.	Challenges and Limitations	53-58
12.	Future Directions	59-62
	Conclusion	63
	References	64-104

Abstract

Healthcare monitoring systems for collecting real-time physiological and behavioral information enable long-term monitoring of health and detection of abnormalities. Early identification of chronic illness symptoms and timely intervention can substantially improve patient outcomes. Remote health monitoring systems have gained prominence due to their ability to continuously collect health data without constraining mobility or comfort. Among these, non-contact monitoring, especially for elderly and neurodevelopmental populations, has become increasingly popular as it avoids burdening patients with wearable devices and comprehensive movement data. The COVID-19 pandemic further highlighted the importance of passive remote monitoring systems. Noncontact healthcare monitoring systems have been widely installed in hospital rooms, rehabilitation clinics, elderly homes, and patients' own homes. Although extensive research has focused on clinical or similar setups, few systems have been implemented within the smart home context, and even fewer integrate multiple heterogeneous devices within a single system. Furthermore, integrating data streams with discharge or clinical information or support systems is rarely addressed. Recent cases of illness or injury occurring in nursing homes remain unaddressed. When such cases arise, caregivers must rely on CCTV recordings and evewitness accounts to reconstruct the patient's condition, delaying timely care. Periodic physiological data from fixed repositories further limits caregivers' ability to track patient conditions effectively. Addressing these challenges requires systems that enable continuous, real-time monitoring of physiological parameters and movement information for patients confined to their rooms.

Introduction

Healthcare monitoring systems have experienced a truly remarkable and substantial surge in development throughout the past decade, resulting in numerous groundbreaking innovations that possess the extraordinary potential to fundamentally transform not only the realm of patient care but also the entire landscape of medical practice as a whole. During this extensive and transformative timeframe, the advent of portable monitoring systems, particularly when augmented by a myriad of emerging and cuttingedge technologies, has captivatingly captured the attention of professionals, researchers, and stakeholders from all corners of the globe. This burgeoning and dynamic field has cultivated an environment that is exceptionally rich in creativity, engagement, and advancement, effectively creating a landscape that is abundant with unparalleled opportunities for enhanced healthcare delivery, as well as significantly improved patient experiences. Notably, the emergence of the Internet of Things (IoT) has played an absolutely pivotal role in reshaping the conventional landscape of healthcare practices, effectively paving the way for the transformative metamorphosis of traditional in-person consultations into highly efficient and accessible telemedicine solutions. Such innovative solutions can be seamlessly deployed in a wide array of scenarios where physical presence may not only be impractical but, in some instances, simply unnecessary for delivering effective care.

In this rapidly evolving and highly challenging context, a state-of-the-art smart healthcare system has been meticulously developed that continuously monitors vital signs within an IoT environment, thereby ensuring that healthcare delivery is not only timely but also impressively efficient and effective in nature. This advanced and sophisticated monitoring system goes far beyond merely focusing on just vital signs; it also scrupulously tracks and observes the conditions of the patient's surrounding environment, providing an exhaustive and comprehensive overview of their overall health status. By meticulously doing so, it effectively empowers both patients and healthcare providers alike with vital information and insights. In pursuit of these ambitious objectives, the system employs an impressively diverse array of

sophisticated sensors that have been meticulously designed for the express purpose of measuring various key health indicators. These essential indicators include—but are certainly not limited to—a wide range of metrics such as heart rate, body temperature, ambient room temperature, and the concentration levels of harmful gases such as carbon monoxide and carbon dioxide, among others. The diverse monitoring capabilities of this innovative system work synergistically to create a robust, multifaceted, and holistic representation of the patient's health metrics, enabling healthcare providers to make informed, evidence-based decisions predicated on accurate and relevant data that effectively reflects the patient's conditions at any given moment.

Importantly, this system is intricately and thoughtfully designed with the intention of maintaining an exceptionally high level of accuracy, diligently keeping its error percentage comfortably within a noteworthy margin of just 5%. This critical level of precision is absolutely essential for guaranteeing that healthcare providers can confidently and reliably depend on the data presented to them, especially in situations requiring accurate decisionmaking. This aspect of precision becomes even more paramount in medical environments, particularly in scenarios where decisions can lead to significant, life-altering consequences that directly affect patient well-being and health outcomes. Healthcare professionals can conveniently access vital patient information through an incredibly user-friendly online portal, which significantly facilitates the rapid and comprehensive interpretation and analysis of the real-time data that is continuously collected and presented. This crucial feature not only bolsters the efficiency of healthcare delivery but substantially contributes to informed decision-making knowledgeable medical professionals. It empowers them to prioritize patient care optimally and respond adeptly to acute health issues as they arise, ensuring that no crucial detail is overlooked.

The resulting prototype from this groundbreaking project carries significant promise and possesses the extraordinary potential to be incredibly effective for ongoing healthcare monitoring on a continuous and consistent basis well into the future. By integrating cutting-edge technology into existing health management practices, this innovative system ensures that patient care can progress toward being both proactive and highly responsive. This strategic and forward-looking approach effectively addresses potential health complications before they escalate into more serious issues that could necessitate invasive or particularly costly medical interventions. With the ongoing advancement and widespread adoption of such pioneering and

transformative systems, the future of healthcare appears increasingly promising and optimistic. It holds the potential for significantly improved patient outcomes while simultaneously making substantive strides toward a more interconnected, integrated, and intelligent healthcare ecosystem. The continuously evolving technologies stand as a beacon of hope, persistently driving progress that can lead to a significantly healthier society at large, thereby benefiting individuals from all walks of life through enhanced access to effective medical services and comprehensive support that they may require [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11].

Background and Motivation

Smart home technologies are rapidly being developed and implemented on a much broader scale specifically for elderly housing projects, as well as in a variety of national residential settings. These innovative solutions are designed with the primary goal of addressing several vital issues, such as providing timely alerts, enabling seamless automation, and facilitating efficient telemedicine services for the ever-growing number of patients who are receiving care within the comfort of their own homes. The introduction of non-contact monitoring of patients has increasingly become more prevalent, particularly amongst the elderly demographic and individuals with various neurodevelopmental conditions. This non-invasive method of monitoring offers significant advantages, as it imposes no physical burden on patients while simultaneously ensuring their overall well-being and safety. Furthermore, the global movements and advancements that arise from these smart home technologies represent a crucial aspect of health monitoring, which can often be quite challenging to evaluate when relying solely on traditional wearable devices that may not always provide the necessary data. Such technological advancements enable the effective accumulation and acquisition of critical clinical information regarding patients, which not only enhances their overall care experience but also ensures a swift and timely response to their urgent health needs. By integrating these cutting-edge technologies into daily life, we are witnessing a transformative change in how elderly care is approached and managed, promoting greater independence and significantly improving the quality of life for many individuals who rely on these essential services [12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20]

System Overview

The proposed system harnesses a broad array of advanced sensors to continuously and effectively monitor a comprehensive suite of critical parameters that are intricately related to the well-being of the patient, along with the environmental conditions present within the bedroom setting. Physiological data, such as heart rate variability, rhythm, and body temperature, is meticulously collected alongside crucial information regarding the ambient environment surrounding the patient. This includes precise and continuous measurements of room humidity levels and concentrations of harmful gases, including carbon monoxide (CO) and carbon dioxide (CO2), to ensure optimal safety and a healthy living space. Although some variability may be introduced by factors like motion artifacts, sensor displacement, and unpredictable environmental conditions, the system impressively maintains an error rate for most measurements below 5 percent. This exceptionally high level of accuracy is essential for providing reliable and dependable data, which can play a vital role in patient care. The collected data is efficiently transmitted without interruption to a centrally managed Web server, granting medical staff the ability to access highly relevant and up-to-date information regarding both the patient and the room environment via any Internet-enabled device, thereby promoting better healthcare outcomes through timely interventions. An agreement between observed and actual data exceeding 95 percent elucidates the system's remarkable capability to provide an accurate and real-time representation of clinical parameters outside of a hospital setting, leading to the facilitation of swift analysis—especially in the event of an epidemic or a healthcare crisis that requires immediate attention and response.

Moreover, the system also seamlessly incorporates non-contact sensors that effectively monitor global patient movement, a critical feature that poses no burden for individuals within vulnerable populations, including the elderly and those with neurodevelopmental disorders, ensuring their comfort during monitoring. The necessity of such a sophisticated system has been underscored significantly by the COVID-19 pandemic, which has highlighted the urgent need for isolation and remote, passive monitoring

from a safe distance, minimizing physical contact. This innovative system effectively confronts the multifaceted challenges of integrating multiple types of sensors, transmitting and managing asynchronous data to a HIPAA-compliant database, and preserving essential patient privacy at all times—a crucial concern in today's healthcare environment. The architecture employs a robust program running on a Raspberry Pi platform to seamlessly integrate a variety of sensors, including a passive infrared (PIR) detector, a high-resolution infrared camera for visual monitoring, a USB microphone for sound detection of any auditory alarms, a color sensor for assessing light conditions, and a versatile temperature-humidity sensor for environmental monitoring. Additionally, a Coral TPU accelerator is employed to conduct compute-intensive tasks such as human pose estimation, significantly enhancing the system's overall functionality and responsiveness, while Bluetooth technology empowers precise geolocation capabilities for tracking patient movements.

The features captured by these advanced technologies support crucial functions such as human movement detection, effective classification of auditory cues to trigger alarms, patient localization for better care delivery, and comprehensive, ongoing real-time monitoring of ambient light, temperature, and humidity levels in the living environment. Overall, this technology represents a low-cost, easily deployable solution tailored for large clinical environments and efficiently supports a vast range of applications outside the traditional hospital setting, ultimately contributing to improved patient care and monitoring capabilities. The system stands as a testament to the potential advancements in the field of healthcare technology, aiming to elevate the quality of life for patients while ensuring healthcare providers have the tools necessary to respond swiftly and efficiently to their needs [1, 13, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29].

3.1 Architecture of the Monitoring System

The smart monitoring system has been meticulously designed to continuously oversee multiple patients simultaneously, thereby enabling real-time tracking during each user's designated time with a healthcare professional, which may include a doctor, a nurse, or other healthcare providers within the healthcare center. This remarkable ability to monitor many individuals at once is of paramount importance, particularly in light of situations where patients may hesitate to ask questions or might decide to avoid seeing a doctor after receiving a low health score. Such refusals could lead to potential health risks and complications, making the monitoring system not just a convenient tool, but an effective, indispensable, and crucial

solution for long-distance health care management in today's complex medical environment.

Additionally, the smart system diligently and systematically collects essential environmental data along with critical medical information by utilizing various advanced sensors and sophisticated medical devices that are seamlessly integrated within the overarching system. The communication between these high-tech devices takes place through the ZigBee protocol, which is widely recognized in the industry for its capacity to form a highly efficient and dynamic ad-hoc network that is also self-repairing. Within this interconnected network, a crucial coordinator node plays a vital role in overseeing all network operations, while also facilitating the seamless sharing of relevant information with a designated gateway for further communication and processing.

The gateway employs interfaces such as a universal asynchronous receiver and transmitter (UART) or RS-232 standard protocols to ensure that smooth and uninterrupted communication is maintained at all times. Furthermore, it is responsible for converting the ZigBee data into data formats that are compatible with various essential aspects of Internet technology, which facilitates seamless transmission of the multiple information protocols to a dedicated server where it can undergo further processing, comprehensive analysis, and informative display tailored to the needs of healthcare providers, thereby enhancing patient care and support in significant ways. The convergence of these technologies ultimately empowers healthcare professionals to provide better services, ensuring that no patient falls through the cracks due to lack of communication or hesitancy [1, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36]

3.2 Key Components and Devices

The innovative smart system architecture skillfully integrates a diverse array of sophisticated sensors along with advanced medical devices to collect and analyze comprehensive physiological and environmental data effectively. A heartbeat sensor, specifically known as the PPG sensor, diligently monitors pulse rates with precision, while the body temperature is accurately captured using a high-accuracy LM35 temperature sensor that offers reliable performance. Furthermore, the highly sensitive MQ-9 gas sensor plays a crucial role by effectively detecting harmful gases, including carbon monoxide (CO), liquefied petroleum gas (LPG), and methane (CH4), which are vital for ensuring safety in various environments. In addition to this, the MQ-135 sensor is essential for assessing air quality; it meticulously

identifies various harmful compounds such as ammonia (NH3), nicotine, benzene, smoke, and carbon dioxide (CO2) levels in the surrounding environment. These crucial signals gathered from the sensors are transmitted to a Relays Module, which includes an efficient Starter Relay and specialized liquid measurement equipment, ensuring effective control over connected actuators and devices for their optimal performance. The ESP32 microcontroller is primarily responsible for processing all incoming data streams, and it subsequently relays this valuable information to a remote server for further analysis, interpretation, and storage. The web interface incorporates ThingSpeak's advanced and user-friendly visualization tools, which allow for real-time observation of data as well as providing in-depth and detailed reporting features for the users, thereby enhancing their experience. The Blood Pressure Monitor (BPM) plays a pivotal role in delivering essential categories for clinical evaluation based on the values meticulously collected from various measurements associated with user health. An Embedded C application forms the backbone of operational functionality throughout this extensive data ecosystem, ensuring seamless operation and management of all components. The powerful Raspberry Pi 4 serves as the supervisory unit, overseeing sensor communication and facilitating efficient information transmission to the cloud environment for greater accessibility, management, and real-time updates. Through this intricate setup, the system provides comprehensive insights into health metrics and environmental conditions, thereby promoting well-being and safety for all users [37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44].

Distributed across the extensively monitored and carefully managed setting, each individual device is continuously engaged in performing complex measurement and data acquisition processes independently. The data that is collected through these various processes is then transmitted to a central coordinator that holds the critically important responsibility for the effective and reliable storage as well as secure sharing of that data with authorized entities and professionals. This well-defined mechanism of operation enables a comprehensive and thorough evaluation of the overall situation being constantly monitored, thus facilitating an insightful understanding of the environment. A variety of different advanced technologies have been thoughtfully adopted for both communication and monitoring purposes, highlighting the impressive sophistication of the entire system. The network of connected nodes makes effective and optimal use of the ZigBee protocol, which has been carefully chosen primarily for its low power consumption and demonstrated efficiency, making it an ideal choice for applications of such a nature. Raspberry Pi 4 devices function as crucial intermediaries within the system, translating signals into the widely-used MQTT format for subsequent relay to robust cloud storage solutions. This specific configuration offers enhanced flexibility in managing a dynamic range of node counts, allowing for the seamless addition, integration, and removal of devices without any need for significant reconfiguration of the existing network architecture that underpins the system. The web server plays a pivotal and essential role in the efficient dissemination of crucial and pertinent information to formal care services, concerned family members, and other third parties involved in the monitoring and care process. This is efficiently achieved through a variety of instant notification mechanisms that have been designed specifically to keep all relevant parties informed and updated. This sophisticated alerting system includes locally visible indicators, such as buzzers that emit a sound to draw immediate attention, along with colored LEDs that provide clear visual cues to indicate various operational statuses and conditions. Additionally, timely push notifications are sent directly to authorized individuals to ensure immediate and effective awareness of important updates or changes in the monitored environment. Access to the shared information is carefully protected via the employment of authorization tokens. These tokens serve to safeguard patient confidentiality and privacy while permitting selective sharing of data with trusted parties within the healthcare community. This layered approach to security ensures that sensitive data is only accessible by those who have been properly authorized, thereby maintaining a robust and secure level of privacy and security within the entire system, which is absolutely vital in healthrelated contexts and applications [1, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52]

Sensor Technologies

The advanced and highly sophisticated system is meticulously designed to effectively and seamlessly collect vital as well as essential information through a network of multiple sensor nodes that are interlinked and interconnected via advanced Bluetooth technology to an access point that is strategically and thoughtfully situated within the Smart Home environment. These meticulously collected data points are then efficiently and swiftly relayed to a clinical server, utilizing a wide range of various advanced wireless communication technologies that are state-of-the-art. sophisticated and cutting-edge setup significantly empowers medical personnel to remotely monitor the patient's health conditions continuously and assess with precision when urgent medical interventions are inevitably required. The overall design of this system seamlessly integrates a wide variety of sensors, Bluetooth transceivers, mobile phones, and a host of essential networking components to provide crucial and indispensable support for elderly individuals. This innovative and forward-thinking approach plays a vital role in helping them maintain their independence while significantly postponing the ever-growing and pressing need for institutional care, ultimately providing both comfort and peace of mind not only to the patients but also to their families [12, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59].

4.1 Types of Sensors Used

In a contemporary medical environment characterized by cutting-edge advancements, there exists a truly remarkable and diverse array of sophisticated sensors that are meticulously deployed throughout the home patient room. These sensors encapsulate a vast assortment of critical devices designed specifically to conduct thorough monitoring of vital health metrics. These metrics include essential indicators such as oxygen saturation, heart rate, body temperature, and blood pressure, all of which are crucial for assessing a patient's health status. In addition to these fundamental health observations, the patient room is further equipped with highly specialized hygrometers that diligently keep track of humidity levels. Moreover, there are also highly sophisticated gas detectors that evaluate the presence of

potentially harmful gases, which include, but are not limited to, carbon monoxide and carbon dioxide, thereby ensuring the safety and well-being of the patient.

All sensory data collected from these diverse devices is continuously transmitted through innovative technologies such as the Internet of Things (IoT) or Bluetooth. This wealth of information is meticulously compiled on a robust Raspberry Pi 4 platform, a versatile computing device that plays a central role in this monitoring system. The incorporation of the IoT framework significantly enhances the entire setup, rendering the accumulated data readily accessible to doctors and healthcare professionals from remote locations. This capability facilitates insightful, real-time analysis across a broad spectrum of health indicators and promotes timely medical interventions whenever necessary. This holistic amalgamation of sensors delivers an accurate, integrated snapshot of the patient's health parameters and additionally encompasses vital environmental conditions that prevail in the immediate surroundings of the patient.

Moreover, the comprehensive monitoring system also encompasses a range of non-contact sensors, which include Passive Infrared (PIR) sensors, high-resolution infrared cameras, USB microphones, color sensors, and effective temperature-humidity sensors. These advanced devices enable unobtrusive, continuous monitoring of both a patient's overall movements and the ambient conditions that prevail within the room, thus ensuring that no crucial data is overlooked. The entire monitoring system is powered by a Tensor Processing Unit accelerator, which is specifically engineered to efficiently extract features while preserving privacy. This technology also executes rigorous calibration routines that are imperative for maintaining data quality and consistency at exceptionally high standards.

The system possesses the capability to capture and utilize an extensive array of vital information, including respiratory rate, SpO2 levels, and body temperature, in addition to heart rate, blood oxygen saturation, ambient humidity and temperature, along with detailed concentration levels of carbon monoxide (CO) and carbon dioxide (CO2). These diverse and combined data streams work synergistically to facilitate a robust and comprehensive assessment of both physiological states and environmental factors. Thus, equipping healthcare providers with the necessary tools to ensure that optimal patient care standards can not only be consistently achieved but also maintained over time is of utmost importance. This integrated monitoring solution stands as a testament to the evolution of healthcare technology, emphasizing the critical importance of real-time data in improving patient outcomes and healthcare experiences [13, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66].

4.2 Sensor Integration Techniques

The developed monitoring system is an advanced technological solution that integrates a diverse array of highly sophisticated sensors that are strategically positioned inside the patient room. These sensors are specifically designed to continuously measure both health-related parameters and environmental conditions with the utmost precision and reliability. Among these sensors, DHT11 sensors hold a vital role in meticulously tracking critical factors such as temperature and humidity, which are absolutely essential for thoroughly assessing air quality within the room. The accurate and continuous monitoring of these environmental parameters not only contributes significantly to the comfort levels of the patient but also plays a crucial role in supporting their overall health standards. Moreover, in addition to the functionality provided by the DHT11 sensors, MQ-9 and MQ-135 gas sensors are deployed to work diligently in identifying potentially hazardous gases present in the environment, including LPG, CO, CH4, NH3, Benzene, Smoke, and CO2. This remarkable capability provides critical data on room safety, ensuring that any dangerous levels of these gases are promptly detected and adequately addressed, thereby minimizing any risk associated with airborne toxins.

In addition to the gas sensors, a sophisticated heartbeat sensor is employed within the system to meticulously monitor the pulse rate of patients. This is achieved by detecting blood volume changes through light intensity modulation as the light passes through the body tissue during circulation. The comprehensive measurements gathered from these sensors offer immediate psychosomatic reflections and are crucial for the continuous monitoring of the well-being of patients, allowing for the detection of any significant variations over time. Once the sensor data is collected, it is received by an Arduino Mega microcontroller. This microcontroller is specially equipped with customized firmware that is designed to efficiently process these diverse inputs. Furthermore, the microcontroller also facilitates seamless communication with the backend system through an ESP32 module, which operates effectively over a robust and reliable Wi-Fi network for consistent and uninterrupted data transmission.

This carefully designed and robust configuration enables continuous and real-time monitoring of both physiological and environmental parameters in the comfort of the home setting. This eliminates the need for intrusive wearables or external devices that could potentially hinder the daily life and activities of patients. The design specifically addresses various concerns related to sensor usability, ongoing maintenance requirements, and ensuring

user compliance that are often encountered by older adults and individuals in need of constant care and monitoring. It is crafted to suit the varying needs of such high-care individuals, guaranteeing that the technology remains accessible and user-friendly for all demographics.

In consequence, the integrated setup not only facilitates the real-time acquisition of data from a diverse array of medical and environmental sensors, but it also significantly enhances the capacity for ongoing health and safety assessment within the home environment. The system achieves all of this in a manner that is both user-friendly and scalable, adapting to meet the unique needs of different users. The continuous flow of data allows caregivers, medical professionals, and family members to stay thoroughly informed about the individual's health status while fostering a profound sense of security and well-being for the patient. This ensures a holistic approach to patient care, combining advanced technology with compassionate support for residents in home settings [1, 45, 67, 68, 69, 70, 3, 71, 72, 73].

Medical Devices Integration

Medicine continues to play an ever-evolving and dynamic role in the integration and advancement of new methodologies for the effective monitoring of patients in diverse healthcare settings. It serves as one of the most significant driving forces behind ongoing innovation in this particularly critical area of healthcare, where the well-being of individuals is at the forefront of every advancement. The noninvasive patient room monitoring system, which is set to be deployed within the patient's own familiar environment, must broaden its existing capabilities to incorporate comprehensive measurements from a variety of additional sensors and devices that can gather vital health data seamlessly and effectively. This innovative solution is absolutely essential for adapting to specific room setups and unique configurations, all while eliminating the primary need for replacing or upgrading the existing medical devices that are already in use and crucial for patient care and well-being.

A well-defined transition strategy for a medical monitoring system must effectively address the diverse needs of its main application within the healthcare continuum. This strategy should provide not only a clear but also an actionable migration path towards a modular, extended architecture that enables innovation and adaptability. This architecture allows for a greater degree of flexibility and responsiveness in the ever-changing landscape of healthcare technologies, which are constantly evolving to better serve the needs of both patients and healthcare providers alike. Furthermore, the wide array of medical devices that are employed for home care can be systematically divided into two primary categories based on the specific methods utilized for data transmission and communication. classification is critical for gaining a comprehensive understanding of the compatibility and interoperability of devices across various home care settings. By ensuring clarity in data transmission methods, healthcare professionals can better ensure that patient monitoring is as seamless, efficient, and effective as possible, ultimately leading to improved health outcomes for patients.

The ongoing pursuit of enhancing these systems reflects a deep and unwavering commitment to improving patient outcomes and advancing the standard of care in an increasingly complex healthcare environment. As these technologies continue to develop and evolve, they hold the potential to transform patient monitoring into a more intuitive and responsive process, allowing for real-time insights that can drastically improve decision-making and outcomes for all involved. In this rapidly progressing field, finding innovative ways to streamline integration while maintaining the highest standards of patient safety and quality of care will remain paramount for all healthcare stakeholders. It is through this continuous improvement and dedication to excellence that the future of patient monitoring may thrive, reinforcing the vital importance of technology in redefining the landscape of healthcare [1, 8, 74, 2, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80].

Devices that are equipped with Serial Communication Protocols are interconnected through a physical interface, such as Universal Serial Bus (USB), RS232, or RS485. This type of physical connection is generally necessary for ensuring the seamless exchange of data between devices, because the information gathered from various sources must be effectively reported to a comprehensive data monitoring system to guarantee both accuracy and reliability in measurements. Furthermore, devices that utilize Physical Data Transmission Technologies include wireless sensor networks (WSN) that operate based on Bluetooth communication protocol. In this setup, the motion sensor has the ability to communicate the specific activities that it recognizes and registers, while wearable sensors possess the functionality to transmit the measured values even without being directly paired to the device itself. This feature significantly enhances their usability and flexibility, making them highly beneficial in varied contexts. As of the present moment, there exists a total of four primary protocols that govern the sharing and transfer of data with external information systems that originate from medical devices. These protocols are drawn from different established standards and specifications, and in several instances, have established communities that actively promote their use, ongoing advancements, and continuous development within both the healthcare and technology sectors. This evolution in protocols signifies an ongoing commitment to improving how data is managed and utilized in critical areas, thereby enabling more effective monitoring and treatment processes [13, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88].

5.1 Types of Medical Devices

Patient monitoring has seen phenomenal advancements over the years, undergoing a remarkable evolution that has allowed for the incorporation of a wide variety of methods and technologies. Today, this spectrum of approaches includes innovative techniques such as remote video surveillance, comprehensive assessments of vital signs, as well as sophisticated systems for tracking patient activity. This significant evolution has resulted in a prominent increase in the number of medical devices being implemented across a multitude of care settings, which are vital for addressing patients' varied needs. These advancements span from primary care environments, where the first clinical encounters and evaluations of patients take place, all the way through to the most specialized and critical intensive care units, which are responsible for managing the most complex cases of patients. A diverse range of these groundbreaking medical devices can be seamlessly connected to central monitoring systems, allowing skilled healthcare professionals to continuously observe and track the physiological data of patients right from the comfort and security of their own homes.

In recent times, non-contact monitoring techniques have gained significant traction, becoming increasingly prevalent and widely embraced, particularly among elderly patients as well as those living with various neurodevelopmental disorders. These non-invasive systems are meticulously designed to ensure that they impose no burden or discomfort on patients, while at the same time offering the capability to monitor a wide range of global movements. This ability provides healthcare providers with additional valuable insights into individual behavioral patterns, overall wellness, and changing health metrics over time, thereby enabling a more precise and tailored approach to patient care. The unprecedented challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic have dramatically amplified the demand for effective passive patient monitoring solutions, highlighting the essential need for systems capable of monitoring individuals safely from a distance. These systems ensure health and safety without necessitating any direct interaction or contact, which is crucial during such health crises.

Yet, despite the impressive advancements that have been made, there remain significant and notable challenges that need to be addressed in the design and implementation of these sophisticated monitoring systems. These challenges encompass the complex integration of multiple sensors, which are essential for accurately capturing a variety of data modalities and ensuring comprehensive monitoring. Additionally, it is crucial to ensure that effective asynchronous data transfer occurs to HIPAA-compliant databases for secure and vigilant storage, while consistently upholding patient privacy throughout the entire monitoring process. The successful navigation of these factors is paramount for maintaining trust, confidentiality, and integrity in patient care

as we continue to embrace the innovative future of healthcare technology [89, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 95]

5.2 Data Communication Protocols

A comprehensive and highly intelligent system for meticulously monitoring patient rooms has been expertly developed with the primary aim of reliably and continuously collecting, analyzing, and transmitting crucial sensor data in real time. Careful considerations regarding the various data formats were thoroughly analyzed, dissected, and evaluated, encompassing various options such as plain text, HTML, and XML, all of which are essential for the effective communication and interoperability of data among different platforms and devices. In order to facilitate this complex and intricate process, various specialized accessories for iOS devices were thoughtfully designed and created specifically to effectively capture sensor signals that are emitted from a wide range of medical equipment, seamlessly converting them into serial data for further processing. This serial data was subsequently embedded into a Bluetooth RFCOMM stream, thereby ensuring efficient, smooth, and stable data transmission throughout the entire monitoring system.

The individual system components were strategically modeled and meticulously designed to support a diverse variety of data transmission formats, thereby allowing for flexible sensor development and notably simplifying programming for developers working within the challenging and rapidly evolving medical technology sector. Additionally, a state-of-the-art wireless patient monitoring system was innovatively introduced, which presented detailed and highly organized information regarding selected Bluetooth and other various wireless sensor technologies. This included an extensive exploration of essential data communication protocols and a range of hardware platforms that can be effectively utilized within medical settings and environments.

The careful consideration of Bluetooth Personal Area Networking Wireless Protocols was particularly important, as it focused on citing and highlighting serial-port profiles that are capable of supporting and accommodating a wide array of different data formats. This robust capability is especially suitable for effectively addressing the diverse needs and requirements of medical monitoring applications, ensuring comprehensive functionality as well as reliability in real-time patient care scenarios. Ultimately, this dedication to quality and attention to detail significantly enhances the overall quality of patient monitoring and safety, establishing a

dependable foundation for future advancements in healthcare technology [96, 97, 98, 62, 99, 66, 100, 101, 102]

Wireless sensors, combined with innovative finish protocols and a robust adapter scheme, have been proposed to effectively forward critical medical sensor signals utilizing both serial and Bluetooth protocols to a variety of mobile devices. In this proposed architecture, the sensor components and methods for data transmission have been meticulously designed to create a versatile and generic structure, which significantly facilitates the development of various types of sensors while considerably alleviating the burdens experienced by programmers and developers in the field. In light of the increasingly escalating healthcare demands, mobile patient-monitoring systems have been specifically engineered to tackle the multifaceted challenges faced in this field. In numerous studies conducted, sensors were extensively exploited to continuously collect, analyze, and monitor vital-sign data, while the incorporation of wireless sensor networks into the realm of patient monitoring has marked a substantial advancement. Furthermore, a mobility-aware healthcare system was established to efficiently transmit a variety of biomedical signals captured by body sensors over GSM networks, utilizing text messages for effective and real-time communication. To enhance this process, an open-source wireless sensor network platform was developed specifically for the purpose of collecting diverse biomedical signals under rigorous healthcare supervision. This comprehensive system architecture facilitated biomedical sensors in sending their valuable data wirelessly to a designated personal gateway, which subsequently forwarded the processed data to an emergency center or a remote server for in-depth analysis and urgent response. By effectively streamlining the communication and data processing between patients and healthcare providers, this innovative approach marks a notable stride towards the advancement of real-time health monitoring solutions [103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113]

Data Management

The advanced smart system is meticulously crafted to efficiently and effectively collect a diverse and wide-ranging array of critical data from its various sophisticated sensors and medical devices during their continuous operation and functioning. These state-of-the-art sensors and devices typically generate numerous data points at regular intervals, which significantly aids in producing a comprehensive, real-time, and detailed record of the monitored room and environment. It is crucial to highlight that the system architecture is remarkably flexible and can effortlessly accommodate not only continuous and consistent data flows but also lessrepresentative sampling schemes as specifically required for particular applications. This outstanding adaptability greatly enhances the system's overall functionality, performance, and usability, allowing it to effectively meet the varying requirements and diverse scenarios encountered in various dynamic medical environments. Through this intelligent and innovative design, the system is able to maintain high accuracy, reliability, and integrity in data collection processes, ensuring that healthcare providers can make well-informed and timely decisions based on the valuable information gathered from these versatile and advanced devices, thus improving patient outcomes and enhancing operational efficiency [114, 115, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120].

The extracted data are transmitted as a comprehensive and intricate series of structured JSON objects, which effectively and accurately encode individual measurements that have been meticulously organized into specific <name, value> pairs. This careful organization ensures clarity and ease of processing, thereby significantly enhancing understanding and usability for all systems involved in this process. Unless there happens to be a particularly specific and compelling need to transmit data in its raw form, or in scenarios where a device or sensor possesses the advanced capability for onboard storage, the system consistently and efficiently stores this valuable data in a permanent and reliable database. This approach guarantees its accessibility and integrity over time, facilitating data retrieval and comprehensive analysis at later stages. On the other hand, transitory data are only stored temporarily, which provides a crucial layer of functionality that helps ensure optimized

performance or continuity of operations during varying and sometimes unpredictable conditions. This temporary storage solution becomes particularly crucial in a variety of situations, such as during instances of poor network service or in the midst of high-volume data transmission activities when the flow of information may be inconsistent, interrupted, or negatively impacted by external factors. In these complex cases, the ability to hold onto temporary data becomes an essential aspect of maintaining streamlined operations and delivering an optimal user experience. This capability safeguards against potential data loss while simultaneously enhancing overall system reliability and functionality crucial for everyday operations. Thus, the careful handling of data, whether stored permanently or temporarily, exemplifies a well-thought-out strategy in managing information flows effectively [121, 122, 123, 124, 125, 126, 127, 128]

At the sensor and medical device level, the advanced data management solution is carefully crafted to significantly minimize maintenance requirements while also streamlining overall operations for maximum efficiency. The microcontrollers within the sensors and devices are engineered with ample read-write memory specifically designed to allow them to effectively buffer an increased volume of data, even in situations where the upstream connections are down or temporarily unavailable due to circumstances. In parallel to this capability. microcontrollers possess the advanced functionality to postpone other less critical transmissions and intelligently re-prioritize local data traffic as necessary. This sophisticated setup ensures that buffered data is prioritized and transmitted first when the upstream bandwidth becomes available again. By doing so, it optimizes the flow of information and significantly enhances the reliability of data transmission under a wide variety of conditions, ultimately leading to improved performance and more consistent operation of the medical devices in the field [129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134]

Data is securely and efficiently stored in a highly advanced cloud environment, which not only provides a robust and resilient infrastructure for handling sensitive and confidential information but also does so with the utmost care and diligence. This sophisticated cloud infrastructure encompasses not only secure web login protocols but also employs a multitiered approach to access control that effectively manages permissions related to both applications and critical data. Furthermore, the system actuators that are seamlessly integrated into this infrastructure serve a crucial and transformative role within a distributed healthcare system. These actuators provide numerous possibilities for significantly enhancing patient

experiences, offering various elements of comfort, entertainment, and custom control options tailored specifically to the needs of remote patients. Concurrently, they contribute to a notable and much-needed reduction in the workload that the caregiving staff faces on a daily basis. Healthcare professionals can confidently assign control authority remotely, relying on the advanced capabilities and features of the system, which continuously monitors the home environment to ensure safety, utmost efficiency, and responsiveness to patients' ever-changing needs. In this specific context, data management thus represents not just the critical backbone of the smart system, but it also efficiently underpins all monitoring and control tasks in a streamlined and orderly manner. This establishes a fundamental framework that supports the overarching closed-loop strategy, ensuring a seamless and harmonious interaction between patients, caregivers, and the technology that connects them in an innovative and meaningful manner, ultimately enhancing the overall quality of care provided in the healthcare landscape [1, 13, 135, 136, 137, 138, 139, 140, 141]

6.1 Data Collection Methods

The system is designed to operate with a remarkably high level of efficiency, aimed at collecting and analyzing a diverse array of data generated from environmental sensors and various medical devices. Each of these essential functionalities is seamlessly enabled and managed by the advanced ARM-9 processor, which acts as the powerhouse and the core of the entire system. This robust and sophisticated system supports a comprehensive nurse call system that can be initiated through multiple types of requests, including urgent emergencies and critical alerts, thereby ensuring that prompt and vital attention is always provided whenever it is needed most. To effectively accommodate the growing need for data storage, the system offers flexible and diverse options, which include the ability to utilize Secure Digital cards, a USB memory stick, or even facilitate the wireless transfer of data via a local area network to an external PC or other storage device. This inherent flexibility allows for a high degree of adaptability and customization across different healthcare settings, ensuring that the system meets various operational demands and challenges. Collected and analyzed data can be effortlessly reviewed, accessed, and managed instantaneously through a user-friendly web browser interface, which contributes to the system's reputation as an exceptionally versatile solution that is tailored specifically for dynamic healthcare environments where efficient data management is not just preferred, but absolutely crucial. The overall design of the system emphasizes an optimal user experience while ensuring that vital information is readily accessible at all times, thereby enhancing the overall performance and effectiveness of healthcare delivery in any setting [142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147].

Environmental sensors comprise a diverse range of advanced devices specifically engineered to monitor numerous environmental parameters critical to both safety and quality of life. Among these devices is a passive infrared sensor, which plays a vital role in detecting movement within a designated area, enhancing security, and ensuring efficient energy use by regulating lighting in spaces that are occupied. Furthermore, a temperature sensor works to accurately measure the heat levels in various environments, whether in residential settings, industrial workplaces, or healthcare facilities, providing essential data to maintain comfort and operational standards. Additionally, a light sensor serves to gauge ambient light intensity, thus facilitating the appropriate regulation of lighting conditions to optimize visibility and energy consumption. On another front, a humidity sensor diligently tracks moisture content present in the air, which is important for maintaining comfort levels and preventing issues related to mold, dust, and allergens. An air pressure sensor also plays a crucial role by monitoring changes in atmospheric pressure, which can serve as vital indicators for imminent weather variations—essential knowledge for both everyday living and for specific industries reliant on weather conditions.

In the critical realm of healthcare, medical devices often integrate sophisticated ZigBee communication modules that enable seamless wireless connectivity, ensuring that vital health data can be transmitted without any hindrance. Alternatively, a ZigBee adapter interfacing with a USB cable effectively allows for the transfer of this data, thus facilitating efficient transmission of important information. Mobile devices are indispensable in this ecosystem, as they receive the crucial data collected from these sensors and can promptly send relevant alerts and notifications to caregivers. These communications can occur through various channels, such as email, SMS, or even voice calls, whenever necessary, thereby ensuring that caregivers are always informed and able to take appropriate actions.

The continuous, real-time monitoring of patient vital signs is crucial, as it enables timely medical interventions when emergencies arise, significantly enhancing overall patient safety and the quality of care they receive. Moreover, this technology promotes the significant concept of independent living for patients by allowing them to be effectively monitored while still maintaining their autonomy and dignity in their daily lives. The integration of these technologies into healthcare creates an invaluable resource in

building a safer, more responsive medical environment for both patients and their caregivers alike, fostering peace of mind and optimizing health outcomes through the innovative use of monitoring technology [13, 148, 149, 150, 151, 152, 153, 154]

6.2 Data Storage Solutions

The system efficiently acquires and meticulously gathers various types of data directly from a broad range of integrated and sophisticated sensors by periodically controlling, managing, and skillfully monitoring the embedded devices at specific designated set intervals. This comprehensive collection and thoughtful accumulation of data is securely and reliably stored in a robust local environment, which is specifically designed to ensure the safety and integrity of the information. Furthermore, this data is subsequently uploaded to a dedicated web server, which is precisely equipped and carefully configured to deliver comprehensive data access services exclusively to authorized users only. The system has been carefully designed with a strong focus on supporting and facilitating meaningful interactions with two primary types of storage backends: the standard relational database management system, widely known as RDBMS, and specialized time series databases that have been specifically created to cater to time-based data effectively. Both of these diverse storage options have been thoughtfully implemented to provide a seamless environment for continuous evaluation, comprehensive analysis, and to easily accommodate future extensions and upgrades without disruption. In addition, a dedicated driver has been meticulously developed and finely optimized to interface flawlessly with the PostgreSQL database management system, ensuring not only high performance but also outstanding reliability and stability during operations. Additionally, the system robustly supports a variety of other solutions, including InfluxDB and OpenTSDB technologies, which serve as representative examples of dedicated, high-performance time series database technologies. This significantly expands its capabilities to effectively cater to various diverse data storage and retrieval needs, while ensuring that all operations remain efficient, effective, and reliable throughout all stages of data handling [1, 155, 156, 157, 158, 159, 57, 160, 161]

6.3 Data Processing Techniques

Section 6.3 Data Processing Techniques

This section primarily centers on a remarkably diverse and expansive range of methodologies that are fundamentally essential for the effective and efficient management of the extensive and vast data that is continuously collected by the smart monitoring system. This advanced, meticulously designed system has been specifically tailored with particular care and attention to detail for optimal use in a home-patient room environment, catering to the unique and varied needs of individuals receiving care in such settings. The primary and foremost aim of these innovative methodologies is to systematically process this vital and significant information in an exceptionally efficient manner, thereby facilitating effective real-time analysis and decision-making. This remarkable capability enables numerous alerting mechanisms that can prove to be absolutely crucial in such sensitive and critical environments, where timely interventions can potentially make all the difference between a favorable outcome and a detrimental one. Such carefully developed approaches and strategies can greatly enhance the response time of healthcare providers, which is absolutely critical in emergency situations and can ultimately save lives. By significantly improving the overall patient care quality in a profound and meaningful way, these advanced methodologies ensure that patients receive the timely attention and support they require when they need it most. Furthermore, the integration of these sophisticated systems supports a higher standard of care and fosters a safer, more responsive health monitoring environment for both patients and healthcare professionals alike, thereby helping to create a more efficient and effective healthcare ecosystem. Ultimately, the goal is not just to collect data, but to transform that data into actionable insights that drive better health outcomes and improve the overall experience of patients in a home setting [162, 163, 164, 165, 166, 167, 168, 169]

Continuous data collection from a diverse multitude of various sensors, coupled with an expansive array of sophisticated medical devices, generates an extensive and varied range of intricate data streams that necessitate careful handling and meticulous processing at the embedded system level. This careful approach is absolutely vital to ensure both the accuracy and reliability of the vast amount of information that is being generated. Within this complex landscape, the pre-processing phase emerges as a critical and indispensable step in this intricate workflow. This important stage involves several essential tasks such as artifact removal, normalization, and appropriate data formatting, all strategically aimed at transforming the raw signals into consistent, coherent, and usable data sets that can be effectively analyzed and interpreted by healthcare professionals and researchers alike.

For instance, optical sensors frequently encounter significant interference that arises from multiple factors. These include challenges such as patient movement, device misalignment, and unwanted external light

sources that can substantially disrupt the measurements. Given these inherent challenges, sophisticated algorithms become absolutely essential and are strictly required to effectively mitigate pulse-rate artifacts while simultaneously standardizing temperature readings. This meticulous standardization is crucial so as to maintain the overall integrity of the collected data. This detailed and thorough process is imperative to guarantee that the data collected through these advanced systems can be reliably interpreted and effectively utilized for comprehensive patient monitoring, ongoing clinical analysis, and timely decision-making across various aspects of clinical practice.

This focus ultimately serves to enhance patient care significantly and improve health outcomes for those involved. Furthermore, in addition to providing immediate clinical benefits, the effective management of these complex data streams also leads to proactive health monitoring, thereby enabling early detection of potential complications. This proactive approach equips healthcare providers with the necessary tools to track patient progress over time with much greater accuracy. Such continuous monitoring and evaluation features lead to informed clinical decisions and tailored interventions for individual patients, underlining the importance of advanced data processing techniques in modern medical practices.

As technologies continue to evolve rapidly, the seamless integration of comprehensive data analytics ensures that healthcare systems remain responsive and adaptive to the changing needs of patients and healthcare environments. This responsiveness contributes significantly to the overall improvement in patient health management and ultimately enhances outcomes in the healthcare landscape [1, 170, 171, 172, 173, 174, 10, 8, 175].

Local storage on the embedded board serves as the primary repository for essential data, providing a critical foundation for the system's operation and functionality. This storage is integral as it ensures that the vital and necessary information needed for the system's smooth functioning is readily accessible at all times. Meanwhile, the Raspberry Pi serves as a secondary receiver, characterized by its significantly larger storage capacity, which effectively complements and enhances the capabilities of the embedded board. This dual-storage arrangement is designed to enable an efficient workflow by allowing for expanded data handling and comprehensive management across the system. To effectively manage and navigate the inherent storage limitations present in both the embedded board and the Raspberry Pi, special attention must be given to addressing and mitigating any potential bandwidth constraints that may arise during operation. To

achieve this, a variety of sophisticated techniques are employed, such as implementing local buffering systems and an effective prioritization of tasks based on their urgency and importance, which are carefully strategized with a keen focus on maximizing efficiency across the board. Furthermore, the utilization of parallel processing techniques and asynchronous operations significantly enhances the overall efficiency of the system by allowing multiple processes to run concurrently without hindering or interfering with one another. This method of operation is essential for optimizing resource use, ensuring that each component functions at its peak capacity. Wellstructured event-driven threads play a crucial role in governing the data acquisition process, which ensures a smooth, responsive, and agile performance across the system's varied operations. Collectively, these methods and strategies enable the maximization of throughput while diligently minimizing latency during data transfers, ensuring information flows seamlessly and swiftly throughout the system. This intricate engineering framework not only enhances the overall performance significantly but also improves the reliability and robustness of the system, particularly when managing and handling the complex data flow that is essential for ensuring optimal functionality in a wide range of applications. As a result, both components work together harmoniously, contributing to a robust and resilient architecture capable of efficiently processing large volumes of diverse data in various contexts [13, 176, 177, 178, 179, 180, 181, 182, 183, 184]

Processing modules are meticulously and thoughtfully designed to apply a wide array of carefully crafted threshold-based rules alongside sophisticated and advanced classification models. These highly efficient systems continuously and diligently evaluate not only patient conditions but also the surrounding environmental status with great precision and care. Whenever there are any significant deviations from the established norms and expected parameters, these deviations trigger immediate alert signals. These critical signals are then efficiently transmitted through secure, robust, and reliable wireless communication channels directly to caregivers and healthcare professionals. This well-coordinated process facilitates prompt and necessary intervention to ensure patient safety, comfort, and overall well-being. The identified issues and irregularities are subsequently compiled into comprehensive, tailored reports that are generated with attention to detail, which are securely made accessible exclusively by authorized personnel through an intuitive and user-friendly web interface. Furthermore, the system's design is thoughtfully structured to not only accommodate current needs but also to support future expansion and scalability. This adaptable nature allows for the seamless incorporation of additional processing capabilities, ensuring that the system can evolve and adapt as requirements change and grow over time. It thus ensures that it meets the varying and dynamic needs of healthcare environments effectively and efficiently, ultimately enhancing patient care, satisfaction, and operational effectiveness across the board [185, 186, 187, 2, 188, 189, 190, 60].

The described approach not only provides an exceptionally solid foundation for a remarkably diverse array of applications but also establishes a highly robust and versatile base that can thoroughly and effectively support a wide range of subsequent modules, enhancements, and extensions. This encompasses several crucial and integral aspects, including advanced and innovative visualization techniques that are meticulously designed and implemented to facilitate a better and deeper understanding of complex and multifaceted data, as well as enhanced security measures that are absolutely paramount for maintaining data integrity and ensuring protection within sensitive and mission-critical systems. This comprehensive and wellstructured framework fundamentally ensures reliable, efficient, and effective data utilization throughout the intricate smart monitoring system that has been diligently and meticulously established and refined over time and through extensive research and development efforts. Its primary purpose is to significantly enhance overall performance and functionality across a diverse multitude of varied scenarios, thereby offering much greater adaptability and increased responsiveness to the varying operational needs that may arise in different contexts and diverse environments. The impressive versatility of this innovative approach makes it applicable in numerous fields and industries, ensuring that it remains highly relevant and practically useful in effectively addressing contemporary challenges and emerging issues faced in a rapidly evolving technological landscape. By seamlessly integrating cutting-edge technologies and methodologies, this established framework not only addresses current demands but also lays the groundwork for future advancements and improvements in a multitude of settings [191, 165, 192, 193, 194, 195, 196, 197].

User Interface Design

The user interface design for a home patient monitoring system emphasizes the critical importance of delivering vital medical information in a safe, efficient, and secure manner across a wide range of situations and circumstances, including emergencies and unforeseen instances of power outages. This emphasis on security and reliability is particularly crucial for users who may not be fully familiar or well-versed with the intricacies and complexities of the system itself. The liver patients' home care information system serves as a prime and exemplary model, showcasing not only effective integration of essential equipment for monitoring health but also robust methods of user authentication that safeguard access to sensitive data. It strategically reserves advanced functionalities and features exclusively for accounts held by doctors or expert users, ensuring that sensitive health information is accessed in a controlled and appropriate manner, thus maintaining the integrity of the system.

The system is carefully designed and comprises distinctly crafted login interfaces tailored specifically for patients, healthcare professionals, doctors, and other users involved in patient care and treatment. The patient login process is intentionally designed to be straightforward and user-friendly, requiring only a simple username and password to swiftly grant access to pertinent and crucial information that patients need for their ongoing health management. In contrast, the logins for healthcare providers, including doctors and other authorized users, incorporate an added layer of security through advanced fingerprint authentication technology, which complements and bolsters the traditional username and password credentials. This enhanced security feature significantly improves the overall security measures implemented to protect sensitive patient data and privacy, making the system not only more reliable for everyone involved but also instilling confidence in patients and users alike about the safety of their medical information. Ultimately, the design thoughtfully balances ease of access with stringent security protocols, catering to the needs of diverse users while prioritizing patient safety and data security above everything else [198, 199, 200, 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 206]

A highly efficient and advanced smart healthcare monitoring system that adeptly leverages the remarkable Internet of Things (IoT) technology can seamlessly integrate a comprehensive user interface that is expertly and skillfully crafted using the powerful and versatile programming language Python. This innovative and cutting-edge interface is specifically designed to facilitate real-time operational monitoring and to provide extensive and comprehensive daily recording capabilities for a wide array of health metrics. It effectively supports essential medical screening procedures, thorough and rigorous body checking routines, and crucial emergency reporting functions, ensuring timely responses and significantly improved patient care at every level of the healthcare framework. This well-structured and meticulously developed system not only enhances usability and accessibility but also maximizes the overall effectiveness of healthcare delivery, creating a more efficient and responsive health management environment for both providers and patients [1, 207, 208, 209, 210, 211, 212].

7.1 Design Principles

The advanced monitoring system is an innovative solution that effectively aggregates and intricately analyzes comprehensive data collected from a variety of sophisticated sensors that have been strategically installed throughout the home environment. By utilizing a combination of ultrasonic and infrared sensors, the system continuously gathers crucial and vital information regarding the patient's daily activities. This includes, but is not limited to, essential grooming routines, mobility patterns, and other significant actions that are indicative of their overall health status and wellbeing. In addition to tracking these activities, signals generated by various body temperature monitors, electrocardiogram (ECG) electrodes, pulse oximeters, and blood pressure cuff sensors are meticulously processed and accurately compared with each individual's established baseline thresholds, thus providing a detailed overview of the patient's condition. To further enhance the reliability of the monitoring efforts, this wealth of data is also cross-referenced with an extensive database containing well-documented disease models that significantly aid in accurately identifying potential health issues before they evolve into more serious conditions. In the event that an abnormality is flagged during this comprehensive and vigilant monitoring process, medical personnel are promptly notified through an efficient immediate alert system. This rapid communication allows doctors to take swift action as needed to address any health concerns without unnecessary delays. Concurrently, the patient also benefits significantly from receiving a reassuring voice message that is prerecorded; this message is specifically designed to help alleviate any anxiety or panic that may arise from the detection of any irregularities or unexpected changes in their status. Furthermore, healthcare professionals can efficiently access the patient's health details remotely through a secured and encrypted connection, enabling them to conduct live video examinations while also having the capability to review the full history of recorded sensor data, which is invaluable and essential for proper diagnosis and effective treatment planning. Additionally, the scheduling information that is meticulously managed in a spreadsheet format is thoroughly integrated into the system. This integration allows the advanced monitoring system to automatically issue auditory reminders pertaining to crucial appointments and medication timings, ensuring that patients adhere to their prescribed healthcare routines and maintain their overall health. The monitoring system operates in four distinct and flexible modes—morning, night, manual, and emergency—thereby providing adaptable monitoring and security levels tailored to meet the varying needs of the patient throughout the entire day and night. In scenarios where the system detects persistent anomalies or operational failures, users are empowered with the option to switch to manual mode for increased control over their monitoring experience. During emergency situations, all alarms are triggered promptly, and immediate assistance is summoned for enhanced safety and peace of mind. The interfaces with the public switched telephone network and the Internet are meticulously designed to ensure a fail-safe and robust communication network; thus, the system can autonomously place calls and send SMS messages if necessary, ensuring prompt response to health-related emergencies. It intelligently selects the appropriate contacts based on the situation at hand, dispatching prerecorded messages that correspond to the gravity and urgency of the situation, thereby ensuring that all parties involved are adequately informed. Moreover, the collective sensory data generated from the sophisticated monitoring system are further analyzed to identify key activities of daily living being performed by the residents—these activities include bathing, dressing, meal preparation, and medication adherence. Such detailed monitoring enables the effective detection of subtle behavioral deviations that may indicate emerging health issues or the need for timely intervention, allowing for proactive healthcare management in the comfort of the home setting [198, 213, 214, 215, 78, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221]

During the intricate and sometimes complex process of data collection, various deviations and anomalies can potentially arise due to motion artifacts that are primarily caused by a multitude of factors including, but not limited to, patient movement, sensor displacement, and various forms of

environmental interference. This interference could notably include the scattering of ambient light, which is known to adversely affect the precision and accuracy of readings taken by the sensors. Discrepancies that are observed in body temperature measurements may often result from improper sensor positioning, as well as fluctuating ambient environmental conditions that can vary significantly from one moment to the next. Furthermore, any observed variations in room humidity levels are typically a reflection of external weather influences and changing atmospheric conditions that can impact the indoor climate.

Despite facing these ongoing and often challenging hurdles, the error rates that have been consistently observed for vital parameters such as heart rate, body temperature, and room humidity measurements remain remarkably low, with these rates always staying below 5%. This figure is well within an acceptable and manageable threshold for any clinical setting, reinforcing the reliability of the data collected. The continuous and seamless streaming of sensor data to a centralized web server significantly empowers medical staff by allowing them to remotely monitor not only the patient's health status but also the prevailing environmental conditions through various internet-enabled devices that can be accessed from different locations.

When one or more parameters exceed the established threshold limits that have been diligently set, the personnel can promptly implement appropriate and timely interventions without any delay. This integrated and automated system, therefore, effectively supports consistent vital sign surveillance alongside a comprehensive environmental assessment, with an impressive approximate accuracy rating of about 95%. Furthermore, it also facilitates the immediate availability of real-time data during off-site testing scenarios, thereby enabling rapid and effective situational analysis during epidemic outbreaks or any other urgent and emergent contexts that may arise unexpectedly. This high level of monitoring and comprehensive assessment is of paramount importance for timely and effective interventions, ensuring that patients receive the necessary care in a swift manner [1, 149, 222, 223, 224, 225, 226, 227, 228, 229]

7.2 User Experience Considerations

Monitoring the activities of daily living (ADL) serves as a central and vital indicator for detecting various types of physical and cognitive deterioration that may occur over an extended period of time. The careful observation of a significantly reduced number of such activities or shorter durations of these everyday tasks strongly implies decreased mobility and

potential underlying health issues that could have a detrimental impact on one's overall wellbeing. Additionally, these changes can indicate broader patterns critical to understanding an individual's health status. The sophisticated platform is designed to consistently and reliably measure these crucial parameters with the utmost precision. It employs advanced medical instruments to meticulously assess secondary aspects whenever any anomalies are detected in the activity data collected. For instance, a prolonged period without any noticeable activity recorded constitutes an important event that warrants immediate medical analysis and prompt attention from healthcare providers. Notably, the innovative combination of environmental measurements alongside detailed activity patterns enables the detection of specific situations that might otherwise go unnoticed. For example, an increase in multiple toilet visits could indicate diarrhea, identifiable without the need for the direct use of invasive medical devices. which can often be uncomfortable for the individual. This enhanced capability allows the system to subsequently alert family members or medical personnel as necessary, ensuring that timely intervention and effective support can be provided when the individual needs it most. Consequently, this approach fosters a safer and more responsive care environment that significantly enhances the quality of life for those being monitored. Overall, the integration of these advanced technologies represents a promising advancement in health monitoring and patient care [230, 231, 232, 233, 234, 235, 236, 237, 238]

Activity analysis plays an absolutely critical and essential role in significantly enhancing the intelligent management of the status and battery levels of medical devices. For an extensive array of devices that require mobility, such as blood pressure monitors, it becomes crucial that these devices do not automatically transmit data if the user has remained inactive for a certain specified period. This particular approach to activity management is instrumental in significantly optimizing battery consumption and moreover extends the overall operational life of the device, thereby ensuring that it remains functional exactly when it is needed most. Furthermore, the analyses comprehensively cover important aspects of fall prevention, thoroughly reviewing and assessing various scenarios in which a user may find themselves unable to resume their activity after experiencing a fall, which consequently prompts the pressing need for timely and effective assistance. By identifying these potential situations ahead of time, we can ensure a notably higher level of safety, responsiveness, and reliability for users, significantly enhancing the overall efficacy of the medical devices in active use [239, 240, 241, 214, 242, 243, 244]

Sensor outputs for movement detection encompass a variety of sensor types that work together in total harmony to create an effective monitoring system. One of the most critical components of this system is the PIR (Passive Infrared) motion sensor, which is primarily situated in the bathroom area. This specific placement ensures that it can effectively monitor any activity taking place in this crucial location, which is vital for safety and care. Additionally, other PIR sensors have been strategically positioned to cover different areas of the home, including the bedroom and other living spaces, to offer comprehensive movement detection throughout the dwelling. This strategic placement allows for improved safety and surveillance of movement in key areas where it is most needed. Furthermore, an advanced vibration sensor has been securely affixed to the bed, enabling it to detect any movements that might indicate the patient's actions while they are resting or sleeping. A secondary indicator of patient presence is the occupancy status of the bed itself, which is continuously monitored. Nonetheless, it is essential to note that the simultaneous absence of both active detection and bed occupancy does not automatically mean that the patient is absent. This is primarily because the system of non-intrusive monitoring is designed with a focus on respecting both privacy considerations and the constraints that are in place to prevent any form of ambient intrusion into the patient's personal space. To effectively manage this information, a sophisticated state machine is employed, which continuously tracks activity from the array of different sensors, along with inputs from the bed sensor. This system classifies the residence status into three distinct and informative categories: "Present," "Probably Present," or "Absent." If it is observed that various sensor types remain inactive over established periods of time, the platform concludes that the patient has most likely left the room. Consequently, it is programmed to suppress any unnecessary alerts to avoid causing undue concern for caregivers or family members. However, it is important to emphasize that the continuous activation of the PIR sensor located in the bathroom—without any additional movements detected in nearby areas-might signal a potential fall or emergency situation, illustrating the complexity involved in interpreting the vast amount of data gathered from these combined sensors. In this broader context, nocturia, which is the need to wake during the night for urination, emerges as a significant health-related symptom among elderly individuals. This condition has been linked to various health issues, including sleep disorders, decreased concentration, cognitive decline, and also an increased risk of accidental falls. These findings underscore the necessity of careful monitoring and ongoing assessment to ensure the well-being of older adults who may be affected by such symptoms. The integration of advanced sensor technology in home care can profoundly impact the lives of both patients and their caregivers, ensuring a safer environment and more timely interventions when needed [13, 245, 246, 247, 248, 249, 250, 251, 252].

Chapter - 8

Real-time Monitoring and Alerts

The innovative and advanced system has been meticulously designed with great care and attention to detail to ensure continuous and seamless real-time monitoring of patients, coupled with highly effective and timely alerting mechanisms regarding their health status, all within the comfort of their own home environment. Numerous sensors, along with a variety of advanced medical devices, work tirelessly, day and night, to gather essential biometric data that is crucial for assessing patient health accurately and effectively. This essential data includes vital statistics such as heart rate, body temperature, and highly detailed electrocardiography (ECG) signals, which collectively provide comprehensive insights into a patient's overall condition as well as any potential areas of concern. Alongside these vital signs, the system also closely monitors other important room parameters, which include humidity levels, gas concentration, and even ambient light conditions in the surrounding area, ensuring a holistic approach to health monitoring for each patient.

To achieve this high level of monitoring capability, the collected data is efficiently transmitted through advanced wireless communication technologies, specifically utilizing ZigBee modules, which are renowned for their reliability and efficiency in transmitting crucial information over short distances. These technologies ensure that the data is sent rapidly and accurately to a strategically placed central monitoring station, which serves as the core of the system's infrastructure. Within this central station, sophisticated processing units are employed to carry out thorough analyses of the gathered input data. They subsequently generate comprehensive and detailed status reports that are not only crucial for ongoing patient care but also for maintaining the overall well-being and health of the patient in their home environment.

The functionality of the central monitoring station plays a pivotal and indispensable role in supporting medical personnel by providing them with real-time assessments that are absolutely necessary for effective patient management, whether they are onsite, within the same building, or from remote locations far away. Furthermore, a specially designed mobile

application complements this comprehensive system by receiving real-time status information directly from the monitoring station. This innovative app empowers caregivers with the capability to continuously track patient conditions from their own devices, allowing them to respond promptly and effectively to any critical changes that may arise in a patient's health status at any time. Such features ensure a higher standard of care and safety for patients while they remain in the comfort of their homes, providing invaluable peace of mind for both the patients themselves and their families throughout the entire monitoring process, ultimately contributing to an environment of safety and reassurance [253, 175, 254, 170, 255, 256, 257, 258].

The deployment of wireless sensors across various apartments offers a detailed and comprehensive surveillance system dedicated to monitoring health-related parameters of the residents. Motion and presence sensors are meticulously and strategically placed throughout living spaces to detect a wide range of activities such as walking, sitting, and sleeping in real-time, which significantly enhances the understanding of residents' daily routines, habits, and lifestyle choices. In conjunction with these essential features, environmental sensors play a crucial and indispensable role in continuously monitoring important conditions such as temperature, humidity levels, and potential gas leaks, thereby ensuring that the living environment remains not only safe but also comfortable for all residents. Additionally, specialized bed sensors are specifically implemented to track bed occupancy and analyze sleep quality in a thorough manner, providing invaluable insights into the sleep patterns and overall well-being of individuals. The intricate process of data preprocessing transforms raw inputs gathered from these sensors into discrete Boolean events, which then effectively reflect various high-level activities taking place within the home at any given time. This conversion is essential for ensuring clarity and usability of the data collected by the system. Furthermore, users can effortlessly access a visualization of sensor states through easy-to-use web-based interfaces and mobile smartphone applications, making it highly convenient to stay informed and updated regarding their environment. Historical data analysis plays a vital and critical role in this sophisticated system, as it helps to identify unusual or absent activity patterns. By recognizing and analyzing these anomalies, the system can facilitate earlier detection of potential health concerns, which is crucial for timely intervention and preventive measures. This robust system is specifically designed to trigger status updates or alerts whenever necessary, thereby enhancing the proactive nature of health monitoring in these residential settings, where the well-being of individuals is the foremost priority [259, 260, 261, 262, 263, 264, 265, 266]

Data collection entails a meticulous and comprehensive examination of a wide array of various abnormalities that may be present in the vital signs, which are carefully collected from a diverse range of integrated medical devices. This process goes beyond mere data gathering; it also diligently accounts for significant and notable changes in physical conditions, which can be inferred through the use of highly advanced ambient sensors specifically designed to effectively monitor the surrounding environment. The technology employed in these sensors helps in capturing various environmental factors that could impact the health of an individual. Additionally, this extensive process includes the detection, identification, and analysis of uncharacteristic and unusual patterns that may arise during routine daily activities. These activities encompass essential and critical behaviors such as sleep duration, eating habits, and regular exercise routines, all of which are vital indicators of a person's overall health. Upon the identification of any potential or alarming health concerns, the system is ingeniously engineered to promptly issue immediate and timely status notifications through dedicated smartphones. This vital feature ensures that caregivers, family members, or healthcare providers are alerted without any delay, allowing for swift and appropriate intervention if necessary. In this way, proactive measures can be taken to address any detected issues, thereby enhancing the level of care provided. Overall, the platform provides an innovative and highly effective solution for the efficient and reliable monitoring of patients who are managing special health conditions. This crucial monitoring occurs while they remain comfortably and securely within their own residence, leveraging a powerful combination of sophisticated biometric sensors and advanced environmental monitoring devices. Together, these tools deliver a comprehensive, efficient, and accessible health assessment that is tailored specifically to meet individual needs and requirements. The end goal of this sophisticated system is to enhance overall patient care by providing real-time and actionable insights into their health status and well-being, ultimately improving the quality of life for those who rely on these monitoring systems. In doing so, it fosters a better understanding of health trends and prompts timely responses to emerging health issues [1, 267, 268, 269, 270, 39, 271, 272, 273]

8.1 Alert Mechanisms

Several alert mechanisms have been developed and refined over time that serve not only to warn individuals of potential health-related issues but also to provide a crucial line of defense aimed at keeping individuals safe from a variety of unforeseen health risks. Among these alert mechanisms, four distinct types of sensors stand out as particularly effective integral safety and health alert systems that function well within multiple environments: a temperature sensor that is primarily utilized for early fire detection, enabling timely and efficient responses in case fire hazards are imminent; an infrared sensor that plays a critical role in detecting human presence within a space, ensuring that systems and alarms are activated only when individuals are indeed present; a Humidity/Temperature sensor that is specifically designated for monitoring and detecting wet floors, which can present significant slip and fall hazards that may lead to serious injuries; and an ECG sensor that is explicitly designed to monitor irregularities in heart rates, functioning as a vital tool in predicting potential cardiac events and complications.

When the system encounters unfamiliar or stranger visitors within its coverage area, it can be programmed to automatically trigger an alarm, ensuring and enhancing the safety of individuals present in the environment at that time. Furthermore, the identification of significant and concerning variations in vital signs, such as alarm-level bradycardia, which is characterized by heart rates dropping to dangerously low levels, and tachycardia, where heart rates become excessively high, can generate an immediate alert designed to bring urgent attention to potentially life-threatening conditions. The detection of arrhythmia, which refers to irregular heartbeats and may indicate serious health issues requiring immediate intervention, is another critical condition that can initiate an immediate alert reaction within the system.

Based on practical experience combined with thorough testing conducted in a diverse range of settings, a preferred solution has emerged whereby the system is configured to avoid generating alarming messages if there is only one abnormal vital sign detected at any given moment. Instead, the system requires at least two consecutive abnormal vital signs to be noted before it proceeds to sound an alarm. This carefully considered approach effectively reduces the occurrence of false alarms, a common issue that can lead to alarm fatigue and desensitization among individuals. Additionally, the system is designed to be straightforward and user-friendly to implement, allowing caregivers and healthcare providers to easily customize and configure it to meet specific needs and requirements without the necessity for extensive training to ensure effective use on a day-to-day basis. This enhances not only the usability but also the reliability of the system in various real-world scenarios, ensuring individuals remain as safe as possible from health-related risks [274, 275, 276, 277, 278, 279, 280, 281, 282].

8.2 Monitoring Dashboard Features

The dashboard dedicated to monitoring a patient's home environment within a smart healthcare system is an advanced and comprehensive tool that facilitates real-time tracking and in-depth analysis of critical health metrics. Vital physiological signals, alongside various environmental parameters that are meticulously measured by a range of sensors and sophisticated medical devices, are conveniently displayed under the Data sensor tab, providing users with a clear view of essential information that is presented alongside corresponding dates and times for accurate reference. Parameters that are documented manually by nursing staff are readily accessible under the Offline data tab, ensuring that all necessary information is at the fingertips of healthcare professionals.

Statistical evaluations of body temperature are effectively visualized through detailed line and bar charts, with the x-axis elegantly representing time (whether measured in days or hours) and the y-axis displaying the respective temperature values in an easy-to-understand format. Heart rate data are similarly charted using this user-friendly approach, featuring interactive data points that allow users to select specific entries and instantly reveal pulse rates along with their associated timestamps upon selection. To effectively review comprehensive blood pressure and blood oxygen saturation (SpO2) records, users must select the relevant patient and date before confidently pressing the Show button, thus generating the pertinent report that can assist in making informed healthcare decisions. With such intuitive features, this dashboard serves as an invaluable resource for healthcare providers managing patients remotely, enabling them to maintain high standards of care [283, 284, 285, 286, 287, 288, 289, 290].

Continuous monitoring of patient status significantly alleviates the substantial workload on healthcare personnel by delivering uninterrupted data collection, providing fast and secure recording, and facilitating easy storage for future reference and analysis. The integrated platform serves as an effective, economical, and user-friendly solution for hospital patient surveillance, ensuring that critical information is readily available when needed for informed decision-making and appropriate care interventions. This innovative approach not only optimizes patient management but also enhances the overall efficiency of healthcare services, making it a vital tool in modern medical practices. By streamlining processes and reducing the risk of errors, continuous monitoring promotes a collaborative environment where healthcare providers can focus more on patient care rather than administrative tasks. With real-time data flowing seamlessly, the healthcare

team is empowered to respond swiftly to changes in patient conditions. Such proactive monitoring is essential for timely interventions, improving patient outcomes and satisfaction. Furthermore, this technology can support various aspects of care, including chronic disease management and post-operative recovery, ensuring that every patient receives the attention they deserve. Ultimately, adopting continuous monitoring systems represents a significant advancement in healthcare delivery, paving the way for a more responsive and effective medical environment [45, 291, 97, 292, 293, 148, 294, 295, 296].

Chapter - 9

Security and Privacy Considerations

Disseminating information about a patient's health condition to unauthorized individuals can unfortunately lead to a variety of severe consequences that deeply troubling, including violence, discrimination, or stigmatization that may significantly and adversely affect the lives of the individuals involved. In particular, the widespread use and increasing popularity of various social media platforms, such as Facebook, Twitter, and Skype, dramatically increases the risk of unintentional leakage or misuse of a patient's sensitive medical information. This risk arises because anyone using these platforms can easily share, disseminate, or circulate information within the public domain or specific groups, often without considering the repercussions. To effectively mitigate these risks associated with unauthorized information sharing, it is crucial for Internet of Things (IoT) systems to be implemented with stringent, meticulously crafted access management policies that rigorously regulate who can store, access, retrieve, or modify sensitive patient data. This regulation is not just about compliance; it is necessary to proactively safeguard patient privacy and to prevent unauthorized access, which could potentially lead to harmful and damaging outcomes for individuals. Ensuring compliance with established privacy laws, regulations, and patient consent directives is equally paramount to protecting sensitive health information from potentially harmful exposure. A sensor node, in this specific context of healthcare applications, must be equipped and designed to manage access control effectively in order to uphold these essential privacy standards and thereby maintain the trust of patients in the healthcare system, which is critical for the relationship between healthcare providers and those they serve [1, 297, 298, 299, 300, 301, 302, 303, 304, 305]

9.1 Data Encryption Techniques

Protecting data during transmission is an absolutely fundamental requirement in any sophisticated monitoring system that employs various sensors and medical devices. In our increasingly digital world, ensuring the integrity and confidentiality of data during its transmission is crucial for maintaining privacy and security. Data encryption serves as an essential method that effectively preserves confidentiality when the system demands heightened levels of privacy and security. Initially, data are encoded into a complex secret code that is not easily recognizable to unauthorized users, which is subsequently decoded by the authorized recipient, thus effectively preventing unwanted disclosure to unauthorized entities and enhancing overall security. A straightforward and widely used data encryption approach involves symmetric key cryptography, which utilizes a singular key to encrypt the plain text; importantly, the same key is also required for the process of decryption, making it critical for both parties involved. Both the sender and the receiver must diligently maintain the absolute secrecy of the symmetric key to safeguard sensitive information from potential breaches. This rigorous attention to protecting the encryption key is vital, as any compromise could lead to disastrous consequences for data privacy. Adopting robust practices in managing this key, including regular updates and controlled access, is essential in ensuring that data remains well protected throughout its transmission, even in the face of evolving cyber threats and vulnerabilities. Additionally, the implementation of strong encryption protocols must be complemented by rigorous monitoring and auditing practices to detect any suspicious activities that could indicate potential security breaches or attempts at data interception [306, 307, 308, 309, 310, 311, 312, 313, 314, 315]

Conversely, asymmetric key cryptography employs a distinctive and innovative approach to encoding plain text by utilizing a public key that aligns with a specific private key. The entire process is meticulously structured in such a way that only the unique and designated private key possesses the capability to decrypt the cipher text that has been generated. In contrast, the public key serves a singular purpose: it is utilized solely for the purpose of encryption. Any data that has been encrypted using the public key can exclusively be decrypted through the corresponding private key that has been specifically designated for that intended purpose. This sophisticated technique significantly enhances overall confidentiality and security when contrasted against traditional symmetric key schemes, as the private key remains securely undisclosed to any unauthorized parties or entities, even in circumstances where the public key might be freely accessible and widely circulated among numerous users. The concept of preserving the privacy and secrecy of the private key represents a crucial feature that elevates the overall security level. For a visual representation of this intricate process, Figure 9.1 illustrates a comprehensive overview of a client-to-cloud data transfer architecture, clearly highlighting the essential roles of both keys within this secure communication method that underpins modern cryptography [316, 317, 318, 319, 320, 321].

Different IoT architectures present a wide array of challenges and complexities for data protection and security, making it a critical area of focus for developers and organizations alike. Cloud-connected devices require robust and sophisticated encryption measures to be implemented before any sensitive data is uploaded to the cloud environment. This proactive approach helps to prevent potential security breaches that could otherwise compromise highly sensitive information and potentially cause significant harm. Proxy re-encryption acts as a crucial and invaluable method that transforms data that has already been encrypted, allowing designated recipients to decrypt it using their own specific encryption keys and access the information they need. This innovative mechanism enables cloud servers to efficiently serve multiple users simultaneously without disclosing or learning any details regarding the actual content of the data thereby preserving confidentiality being processed, and Furthermore, data transmitted over various IoT protocols achieves confidentiality through a strategic and meticulous combination of both data protection and channel security mechanisms; however, one cannot solely rely on channel protection alone for safeguarding sensitive data. It is vital to also implement comprehensive and thorough safeguards directly on the data itself to enhance overall security. Both storage and communication processes must be encrypted comprehensively and rigorously to effectively resist offline attacks and to prevent indiscriminate eavesdropping that might threaten the integrity, confidentiality, and privacy of the information being shared within the network. Ensuring that comprehensive security protocols are in place is absolutely essential in the ever-evolving and dynamic landscape of IoT environments, as new threats and vulnerabilities continuously emerge, underscoring the importance of remaining vigilant and proactive [322, 323, 324, 325, 326, 327, 328, 329, 330]

9.2 User Authentication Methods

The primary objective of the system is to effectively automate the medical monitoring process through the continuous observation and evaluation of specified health parameters. According to existing studies, patient authentication is an essential security requirement in remote health-monitoring scenarios, as the system must ensure that the data it processes originates from the correct individual before any medical or financial decisions can be responsibly made. Requiring passwords, smart cards, or secret keys is important, but this method has its drawbacks; it can enable

unauthorized individuals who gain access to impersonate the patient and drastically reduces the system's ability to perform continuous identity confirmation. This is particularly concerning because users often forget or misplace such credentials, leading to potential security vulnerabilities. The proposed approach of the system effectively minimizes authentication overhead to facilitate frequent verification with ease and efficiency. Additionally, it employs a challenging and well-protected biometric template specifically designed to prevent margin-memory attacks that could compromise security. Based on a comprehensive analysis and empirical study of various remote patient-monitoring scenarios, it has been determined that electrocardiogram (ECG) and accelerometer signals stand out as the most promising candidates for continuous biometric authentication, offering a reliable and secure solution for ongoing patient monitoring and identity verification. This dual-channel authentication strategy not only enhances security but also improves the overall efficiency of medical data management in a remote context [331, 332, 333, 334, 254, 335, 336, 337]

Chapter - 10

Case Studies

Monitoring a home patient room typically engages a thorough and robust collection of advanced systems that are meticulously crafted to enable optimal indoor and outdoor surveillance aimed at enhancing security, safety, and overall well-being. This holistic approach is not merely beneficial but is fundamentally crucial to guarantee the highest levels of patient safety, while also distinctly defining the boundaries between authorized and restricted zones for the multitude of activities that can take place within or outside the patient's designated living area. This ensures that all essential protocols and guidelines are rigorously adhered to. A diverse range of these systems are integral to this vital process, encompassing several components including, but not limited to [259, 211, 61, 338, 106]:

Housekeepers' Module_ Alarms: This specialized module offers housekeepers an efficient and convenient method to initiate, monitor, and manage a variety of pre-planned alarms tailored specifically for their unique tasks and responsibilities. It is meticulously designed to significantly enhance their overall efficiency and ensure that all necessary activities are addressed and completed in a timely manner throughout their busy work shifts, thus optimizing their productivity and effectiveness in maintaining order and cleanliness [339, 340, 341, 342].

Automatic Intrusion Detection: This highly sophisticated and innovative system operates primarily around windows, balconies, and a variety of other potentially uninhabited or vulnerable areas that may, at any moment, require enhanced security measures. It relies heavily on an extensive network of advanced IP cameras that are strategically placed in optimal locations to ensure effective monitoring and heightened security at all times. Each camera incorporates cutting-edge technology enabling it to capture high-definition video footage, ensuring that every possible angle is covered efficiently. The system is meticulously designed to detect unauthorized access swiftly, providing immediate alerts in real time. These features significantly improve safety levels within diverse residential and commercial environments alike. By maintaining constant vigilance through

state-of-the-art surveillance technology, this system not only acts as a strong deterrent against possible intrusions but also empowers users with the capability to respond promptly to any situations that may arise. Additionally, it facilitates structured response procedures to mitigate threats efficiently and protect valuable assets, ensuring peace of mind for all users and encouraging a secure environment for inhabitants [343, 344, 345, 346, 347].

Access Control: This highly sophisticated and state-of-the-art system diligently manages the entry of a diverse and varied array of vehicles as well as pedestrians across a wide range of roadways, which may include those that are public or privately owned, whether by individuals, businesses, or organizations. In addition to this crucial function of overseeing traffic and individuals, it also plays a pivotal role in supervising accessible areas within a wide variety of residential homes and facilities, ensuring that only individuals who possess the proper authorization and necessary credentials are granted access to these spaces. Furthermore, the system takes on the significant responsibility of managing advanced camera modules along with a detailed, intricate, and robust intrusion detection system that effectively monitors for any potential threats, risks, or unauthorized access attempts. This comprehensive approach not only significantly enhances the overall security levels but also instills a strong, reassuring sense of peace of mind for both homeowners and facility managers alike. They can rest easy, knowing that their properties, valuable belongings, and loved ones are all well protected and continuously monitored at all times, making AccessControl an essential and indispensable component of modern security systems that provide invaluable protection and assurance [348, 349, 196, 350].

Anti-Heading Module: This innovative system efficiently provides comprehensive alert management solutions, not only within the home environment but also for users in company vehicles as well.

Access Control for Authorized Persons: Monitors access and entry of authorized individuals within the home.

Even with the availability of these advanced systems, many home monitoring solutions continue to stay rather basic in nature and often lack proper integration with essential medical devices needed for effective patient treatment and protocol management [211, 207].

10.1 Successful Implementations

A highly advanced and sophisticated smart healthcare monitoring system, strategically deployed within an expansive IoT (Internet of Things) environment, facilitates the efficient and continual monitoring of patients' numerous vital signs alongside the critical conditions of their surrounding environments. The system's remarkable ability to continuously track a range of key parameters, including heart rate, body temperature, ambient humidity, and levels of potentially toxic gases, empowers medical staff to effectively observe and manage multiple patients remotely through a comprehensive network of Internet-connected devices. This all-encompassing approach to healthcare monitoring ensures that measurement errors remain below a notably low threshold of 5%, thus upholding the highest standards for accurate data collection and reliable readings. By providing authorized personnel with immediate, real-time access to essential vital data, the system significantly enhances the capacity for rapid, informed decision-making during critical situations, such as widespread epidemics, potential outbreaks, or individual medical emergencies. Additionally, a success rate that exceeds an impressive 95% for aligning the observed data with actual clinical data serves to reinforce the system's reliability and credibility, ensuring that effective healthcare monitoring protocols are consistently maintained over time. Such groundbreaking innovations not only streamline patient care processes but also elevate the overall standards of healthcare delivery in modern medical facilities across various environments, leading to better patient outcomes and enhanced operational efficiency [1, 351, 352, 353, 354, 355, 356, 357]

The increasing and widespread usage of contact-free monitoring solutions, particularly among elderly populations and individuals with various neurodevelopmental conditions, can be attributed to the significant lack of extra burden placed on patients and their caregivers. This shift towards non-intrusive and more user-friendly methods has been further amplified by the unique circumstances of the COVID-19 pandemic, which not only highlighted but also intensified the urgent need for passive distance monitoring solutions that maintain safety and efficacy. In order to confront and effectively handle three significant challenges—namely, the seamless integration of sensors for multi-modal and comprehensive data collection, the reliable asynchronous transfer of crucial information to HIPAAcompliant databases, and the ongoing protection and respect for individual privacy—a truly novel edge computing and ambient data capture system has been meticulously developed to effectively address each of these essential and challenging requirements. This innovative system incorporates an extensive array of five different sensors, including a passive infrared sensor that detects motion, an infrared camera for visual monitoring, a sensitive USB microphone for auditory data capture, a color sensor for environmental interactions, and a temperature-humidity sensor that monitors comfort levels—all in combination with a TPU accelerator that significantly optimizes compute-intensive tasks, such as human-pose estimation necessary for effective tracking. Furthermore, advanced Bluetooth technology is employed to facilitate accurate and reliable beacon-based geolocation, enhancing situational awareness. As a result, this advanced solution is able to rapidly acquire privacy-preserved features across a diverse range of modalities, which not only enables the precise detection of human movement in various settings but also allows for a detailed analysis of auditory cues, effective assistance with geolocation, and thorough monitoring of environmental conditions pertinent to the well-being of users. Importantly, this highly effective solution relies on low-cost, commodity hardware, which enables rapid deployment across extensive clinical settings and home environments while completely eliminating the need for dependence on expert hardware fabrication or installation expertise [358, 359, 360, 361, 362, 363, 364, 365]

Applications encompass a wide array of significant areas, including but not limited to, occupancy estimation, intricate activity phenotyping, detailed alarm classification, precise human geolocation, and thorough logging of vital environmental parameters. These parameters include not only ambient light and temperature but also critical humidity levels, which play a vital role in our understanding of indoor environments. Recognizing the critical significance of effective indoor environmental management is essential for enhancing patient comfort, overall well-being, and recovery outcomes. Established guidelines in the healthcare sector firmly emphasize the necessity of adhering to well-defined and well-researched thermal zones that are specifically tailored to accommodate individual patient preferences and unique needs. Furthermore, maintaining appropriate humidity levels is absolutely crucial; they must be kept below specific thresholds that could otherwise promote the unwelcome growth of fungi, bacteria, and other harmful pathogens. These well-considered measures are fundamental for ensuring a safe, healthy, and conducive environment for patients to facilitate their healing process and, in turn, enhance their overall experience. By implementing such strategies, healthcare facilities can create an atmosphere that not only supports recovery but also advocates for the mental and physical well-being of patients during challenging times. This approach is not merely beneficial but necessary in modern healthcare settings, where the quality of the environment can significantly influence health outcomes [13, 366, 367, 368, 369, 370, 371, 372]

10.2 Lessons Learned

The research provides several very important lessons that can greatly

assist those who are wishing to create a similar environment effectively and efficiently, all while dealing with the diverse world of smart home technologies. Even systems that are developed by the same manufacturer, including but not limited to smart-home security devices, may unwittingly and unexpectedly be based on incompatible technologies that can lead to significant integration challenges. These challenges can often be quite difficult to overcome and resolve satisfactorily. Therefore, it is highly advisable and in fact, crucial, to select devices that are known to be compatible well in advance. Doing so helps to prevent any potential integration problems that could arise later on, potential complications which might significantly hinder the overall functionality of the smart home setup. The selection process of a sensor platform requires careful and extensive consideration; while platforms like Home Assistant are widely known throughout the industry to be open source and versatile for fulfilling a variety of home automation needs, they may also be prone to multiple technical problems stemming from third-party suppliers or user communities. These issues could greatly complicate the everyday usage of these platforms, leading to frustration for users. This situation is largely due to the broader community having significantly less control over the software and hardware than a single, dedicated company would possess. A dedicated company typically ensures a higher level of reliability and performance for its products, which can drastically improve user experience. Ensuring proper interoperability among devices is crucial for achieving a seamless user experience that genuinely meets the needs and expectations of the end user. This functionality allows for a more satisfying and effective smart home environment that enhances daily living experiences [373, 374, 375, 376, 377, 378, 379, 380, 381]

Choosing an appropriate modeling language greatly depends on several crucial factors, including the specific data type that is involved in the project and the level of expertise that the user possesses in the field of modeling. Nonetheless, graphical interface modeling tends to be the most favored choice among users as it allows non-technical and technical users alike to actively participate in the creation of new and innovative activity models. This participatory approach significantly empowers users by making the modeling process more inclusive and accessible. Ensuring system modularity is essential, as it not only promotes code reuse among various components but also allows for the seamless adaptation of existing models to new activities and diverse scenarios. This adaptability is vital in a rapidly changing technological landscape. When developing graphical user interfaces, it is exceedingly important that they effectively facilitate the

creation of Internet of Things (IoT)-based systems, thereby minimizing the necessity for direct coding activities by users who may not have advanced programming skills. Additionally, the integration of search engines must be carefully designed to accommodate queries that are expressed in natural language, rather than relying solely on traditional Boolean searches or specific keyword formats. This more intuitive approach significantly enhances user experience and accessibility, making interactions smoother and more user-friendly. Furthermore, the database utilized must have robust support for text storage, with particular emphasis on ensuring compatibility with the primary system language. This ensures that all components of user inquiries are preserved in their intended context and accurately translated when engaging in voice-to-text interactions. By prioritizing these factors, we can improve the overall reliability and effectiveness of the system, thus enabling a better experience for users across various applications and settings [382, 383, 384, 385, 386, 387].

Chapter - 11

Challenges and Limitations

Despite the numerous and well-demonstrated benefits of closely monitoring patients through the use of advanced sensors and various cutting-edge medical devices within the comfort and familiarity of a home environment, there are several significant challenges and limitations that must be effectively addressed. These issues are critical to ensuring both the widespread adoption among health care practitioners and patients alike, and also the overall effectiveness and reliability of these innovative technologies. It is essential that we tackle these concerns to fully realize the potential advantages that such monitoring can provide in improving patient care and outcomes [64, 211, 10, 8, 259, 2, 215].

First, the system requires a meticulous design approach to avoid overwhelming medical staff with an excess of unnecessary data that could potentially hinder their efficiency and productivity. One effective strategy to minimize this risk is to strictly restrict data collection to the key parameters of vital signs and room conditions, since prior research has consistently demonstrated the significant value of this specific data for ongoing medical monitoring and informed decision-making processes. Maintaining an optimal balance between providing the sufficient detail necessary for accurate diagnosis and carefully managing the overall volume of reported data is therefore absolutely critical for the success of the system. It is essential to ensure that the information collected remains relevant, useful, and actionable, allowing healthcare professionals to focus on what truly matters in patient care and thereby facilitate better outcomes. The emphasis must lie on optimizing data relevance while ensuring that the operational demands on healthcare staff do not become overly burdensome [1, 227, 222, 388, 228, 389, 390, 391].

A second significant challenge involves not only the strategic placement of sensors but also the development of efficient data acquisition strategies, as well as the intricate design of complex networks. Prior research has indicated that noise occurring during the data acquisition process can significantly complicate the identification of any abnormal pattern changes that may arise in patient monitoring systems. This situation highlights the critical

importance of optimizing each of these key design aspects to enable consistent, continuous, and reliable monitoring of patients over time. Furthermore, advances in the realm of large distributed heterogeneous networks could be effectively leveraged to reduce the adverse impact of noise and minimize the instances of missing data. By doing so, we can enhance the overall data quality and accuracy in monitoring systems considerably, leading to improved patient outcomes and more effective interventions. This multifaceted approach requires careful consideration of both the technical and practical elements involved in sensor placement and network design to overcome the challenges faced in healthcare monitoring environments [13, 392, 170, 3, 393, 394, 395].

Third, it is essential that clear decision-making and communication protocols are thoroughly established to govern and dictate the methodology by which the system effectively determines the precise moments when alerts should be sent out. It is equally important to specify which particular individuals should be notified in each unique situation. Ideally, the system would take the initiative to reach out and make contact with the patient directly and personally, ensuring that they are fully aware of any urgent matters that may be affecting them at that moment in time. Following this, the system would then proceed to inform the relatives or medical personnel accordingly. Emergency messaging is strongly recommended for critical cases and life-threatening situations, such as instances of heart attacks or notable, concerning changes in body temperature, where immediate action may be necessary. Such prompt notifications can make a significant difference in outcomes during emergencies. In contrast, for situations that are deemed less urgent and do not necessitate immediate intervention, electronic medical records could be regularly and systematically updated. This will serve to keep specialists and healthcare providers continuously apprised of the patient's current condition, as well as any developments that may arise over time. This comprehensive approach ensures that coordinated and continuous care is provided for all patients involved. By fostering an environment of proactive healthcare management, we not only preserve patient safety but also enhance their overall wellbeing significantly [396, 397, 398, 191, 399, 400, 401]

Finally, significant privacy considerations undeniably emerge when it comes to the storage of detailed health information and sensitive environmental data. The necessity for compliance with a variety of regulations, such as HIPAA, mandates that all forms of sensitive information must be effectively encrypted during their transmission to ensure security.

Moreover, strict control measures must be rigorously implemented to carefully regulate access to personalized data, thereby safeguarding it from unauthorized use. Access to anonymized data, which is specifically intended for aggregate analysis and broader research purposes, may be more readily permitted under certain carefully specified conditions that ensure the integrity and protection of individual privacy are maintained [402, 403, 404, 405, 406, 407, 408]

11.1 Technical Challenges

Revolving around a sophisticated and highly advanced wearable chipset combined with an intuitive and user-friendly smartphone application, smart sensors are meticulously designed to continuously monitor patients' vital signs while carrying out comprehensive and in-depth risk analyses. These cutting-edge analytical models meticulously analyze the intricate dynamics of various internal processes, thereby significantly supporting users' critical and crucial decision-making processes. The innovative and state-of-the-art IoT system seamlessly integrates multiple sensors into a compact yet highly efficient microcontroller, facilitating the efficient transfer of processed data through a reliable and robust wireless transceiver. The implementation of real-time, smart, and intelligent monitoring systems enables the immediate and prompt recognition of patients' physical states, thereby offering timely and actionable insights into their health condition. Although a smart-bed system is available to automatically monitor a broad and wide array of physical aspects and detect any abnormal health conditions through the Internet of Medical Things (IoMT), it is worth noting that many existing solutions necessitate continuous device placement directly on the patient's body. This requirement highlights the increasing appeal and advantages of non-contact monitoring technologies, which offer the distinct advantage of continuous health surveillance without imposing any burden on the patient. A wide and extensive array of sensor types simultaneously captures multiple data points, asynchronously transferring this vital and crucial information to a HIPAA-compliant database, all while maintaining strict and rigorous privacy measures. Within the software ecosystem, five distinct and varied sensors are seamlessly integrated into the system: a Passive Infrared Sensor (PIR), an infrared camera, a USB microphone, a color sensor, and a temperature-humidity sensor. This powerful and effective combination operates on a Raspberry Pi (RPi) platform equipped with a specialized Tensor Processing Unit (TPU) accelerator, which is specifically designed for efficient and advanced feature extraction. In addition, Bluetooth technology provides precise and effective geolocation capabilities, and the use of lowcost hardware significantly enhances system scalability while eliminating the need for expert and specialized fabrication. The practical applications of this cutting-edge technology are vast and varied, including occupancy estimation, activity phenotyping, alarm classification, human geolocation, and ambient environment logging, all of which are crucial for ensuring and maintaining patient comfort and well-being. Furthermore, managing and controlling key environmental factors such as indoor temperature, humidity, and light intensity is vital for optimal patient recovery, with specialized thermal zones tailored to individual patient preferences and specific needs. It's important to note that maintaining a high level of relative humidity is directly linked to various issues such as fungal growth, posing potential and significant challenges to recovery processes [1, 13, 91, 409, 410, 411, 412, 413, 414, 415].

11.2 User Acceptance Issues

In recent years, there has been a remarkably diverse array of innovative have been actively experimenting with projects communication networks, which effectively integrate various nodes equipped with state-of-the-art sensing, computing, and communication capabilities. These intricate and sophisticated systems are specifically designed to operate within a distributed architecture. This architecture is ultimately capable of continuously monitoring, analyzing, and assessing the status of a given physical environment in real-time. Unfortunately, limited user acceptance continues to pose a recurring and significant problem. This challenge hampers the widespread adoption of Ambient Assisted Living (AAL) technologies in everyday settings, thereby creating a formidable barrier to their potential benefits and advantages. This particular challenge is especially evident in typical Home Care scenarios, where a number of unique characteristics play a crucial role in shaping user perception and acceptance of these technologies. For instance, the frequent involvement of older adults in these care systems, many of whom may experience a wide array of impairments such as compromised hearing, diminished vision, and an overall decline in cognitive functions, is assumed to be among the fundamental design premises that guide the development and refinement of these essential technologies. This makes it imperative that designers closely consider and take into account these factors during the design process. Ensuring that such systems are user-friendly, easy to understand, and adequately meet the specific needs of this demographic is absolutely vital for promoting greater acceptance and usability in practical applications. By addressing these concerns thoughtfully, the potential for broader acceptance and integration into daily life can significantly improve, allowing for a better quality of life for all users involved [416, 417, 418, 419, 420, 17, 421, 422, 423]

The system effectively implements a comprehensive and complete remote area patient monitoring system that is both innovative and functional. It consists of a diverse array of different sensor nodes, a gateway, routes for data transmission, and an Internet cloud server that facilitates data management and analysis. The system is designed to include stationary nodes that are generally attached securely to the patient's body or positioned within the patient's immediate environment to ensure optimal monitoring. Additionally, there is a mobile node which is usually integrated seamlessly into a smart phone that is carried by the patient at all times. This mobile node serves a crucial role in the system's monitoring capabilities. Stationary nodes are primarily responsible for the continuous monitoring of the patient and their surrounding environmental conditions, maintaining a focus on accuracy and reliability. The mobile node, on the other hand, is mainly utilized for comprehensive patient monitoring, capturing various aspects such as the patient's movement patterns and multiple physiological parameters in real time. This node supports two distinct types of communication, which enhances its versatility. It features short-range wireless communication capabilities that facilitate interaction with the stationary sensor network, allowing for localized data collection and monitoring. Additionally, it incorporates long-range communication options through 3G or Wi-Fi networks, enabling consistent communication and data transfer with the Internet cloud server. This robust communication model allows the patient to move freely in different environments without any interruption to the continuous monitoring process throughout the day. As a result, the system ensures that health data is constantly collected and transmitted for analysis, enhancing the overall healthcare experience and providing timely insights into the patient's condition [230, 424, 425, 426, 427, 428, 429, 430, 431, 432, 433]

Non-intrusive and privacy-friendly sensing devices possess the remarkable capability to gather valuable information regarding individual activity levels as well as their overall health status. These devices can provide insights that can be essential for improving the quality of life for many people. However, various user acceptance issues, alongside multiple technical and methodological constraints, frequently represent significant limiting factors when it comes to their implementation in real-world scenarios. By effectively combining unobtrusive and privacy-respecting sensor engineering with specialized service-oriented approaches, as well as with activity monitoring tailored to specific environments and context, particularly in diverse settings, we can unlock the potential for groundbreaking innovative assistance solutions. When sophisticated intelligent sensor processing techniques are integrated with advanced pattern

recognition algorithms, these advancements can further enhance the quality and effectiveness of the assistance solutions we provide to users. Ultimately, the goal is to create a seamless integration of technology that respects user privacy while offering significant health and activity insights, leading to improved outcomes and experiences for individuals [434, 435, 436, 437].

Chapter - 12

Future Directions

There exists a significant potential for future growth and development in the proposed system. At present, the monitoring device is missing the essential capability to carry out vital signs measurements, which is a crucial functionality that is needed to effectively assist caretakers in their duties. In order to successfully bridge this gap, a modular architecture could be adopted, facilitating the addition or removal of various electronic boards to customize features as needed; furthermore, these modular components should be Bluetooth-enabled to ensure compatibility with existing facilities and to enhance overall portability, making it easier for users to manage and utilize the device in different environments [149, 438, 439, 440].

System scalability emerges as an essential consideration. The current deployment supports only one device per sensor type, yet many healthcare facilities require multiple sensors to cover larger or multiple rooms. Developing a multi-client architecture capable of managing numerous monitoring units simultaneously would meet this need [441].

Furthermore, adopting a fully wireless design would reduce potential wiring issues and enhance portability, making the system more adaptable to various spatial arrangements ^[69].

12.1 Emerging Technologies

Industry 4.0 represents a transformative and revolutionary approach that involves the comprehensive and intricate linking of digital manufacturing processes to the expansive realm of the Internet of Things (IoT) and cutting-edge, state-of-the-art cloud computing technologies. This collaborative integration and convergence enable significantly enhanced communication and seamless data exchange, resulting in improved efficiency, productivity, and overall performance within the manufacturing sector. Looking ahead with great anticipation, Industry 5.0 places a strong and focused emphasis on interoperability and seamless communication within the entire manufacturing cluster, diligently pushing the boundaries of traditional production paradigms. As we look forward to the anticipated advent of Industry 6.0, it is poised to focus heavily and primarily on human-oriented

approaches; this upcoming phase will not only extend current artificial intelligence concepts into new realms but will also involve the groundbreaking and innovative development of advanced replacements for existing intelligent robots that aid in various tasks. The widespread integration of IoT technologies across multiple fields and industries will become increasingly vital, enabling innovations that significantly enhance daily operations and overall effectiveness across sectors. Furthermore, we can expect the continuing expansion, refinement, and modification of smart cities to better align with local needs, preferences, and community-specific requirements. These urban environments will strive earnestly for achieving net-zero carbon emissions, with a concerted and unified focus on optimizing operational processes to ensure environmental sustainability and resilience. The impactful and transformative role of artificial intelligence throughout various settings, including hospitals, educational institutions, and residential environments, will be profoundly significant and apparent. AI will play a critical and pivotal role in continuously monitoring patient treatment plans, advocating for improved health outcomes, and significantly streamlining healthcare services to be more effective. The dynamic evolution of healthcare monitoring systems within hospitals and health centers has seen remarkable growth and advancement, reflecting the rapid pace of technological change. Portable monitoring systems, utilizing rapidly emerging technologies that are constantly evolving and innovating, have become pivotal on a global scale, effectively catering to patients' dynamic needs. Additionally, the incorporation and seamless integration of medical devices with built-in AI and machine learning capabilities have surged tremendously, reflecting the growing demand for real-time patient status monitoring and proactive care. These groundbreaking advancements aim to facilitate timely treatment recommendations, providing essential care whether individuals are within the walls of hospitals, health facilities, or receiving treatment in the comfort and safety of their own homes, ensuring everyone has access to the best possible healthcare [1, 198, 442, 443, 444, 445, 446, 447, 110]

12.2 Potential Improvements

Numerous potential improvements can be meticulously outlined and systematically implemented to smart home patient monitoring systems, aiming to significantly enhance both their performance and maintainability over time. To effectively achieve these enhancements, it is crucial to critically analyze and optimize key design parameters, including the data acquisition rate and the sampling frequency of various physiological signals. This careful optimization ensures that an adequate information quality is

consistently upheld without imposing any excessive processing burdens on the overall system architecture. Additionally, advanced signal processing techniques should be further refined and enhanced to greatly improve system robustness, as well as resistance to noise interference, which can often compromise the accuracy and reliability of data. Furthermore, intelligent algorithms can be thoughtfully developed and successfully implemented to effectively mitigate the occurrence of false alarms, thereby substantially improving the overall reliability and trustworthiness of the monitoring system for both patients and healthcare providers. In conjunction with this advanced technological approach, comprehensive performance evaluations can yield invaluable insight into numerous additional design considerations, which are crucial for ongoing enhancements and improvements. Moreover, the flexible and adaptive deployment of sensing components permits seamless adaptation to the diverse and varying medical conditions of different patients, ensuring that healthcare remains effective, reliable, and efficient regardless of specific circumstances and individual needs [211, 448, 449, 450, 348, 451]

By way of illustration, an innovative android application-based smart home patient monitoring system is designed to enhance the monitoring and care of individuals at home. This system includes various vital detectors that meticulously track critical health parameters, complemented by a sophisticated syndrome sound analysis module that evaluates and interprets sound patterns indicating specific health issues. Furthermore, the system incorporates a calling platform to facilitate prompt emergency responses when required, ensuring that assistance can be summoned quickly and efficiently. The system communicates continuously and seamlessly with a central cloud server that diligently processes voluminous data and responds to user inquiries in real-time. This robust communication framework supports adjustable monitoring frequency and duration, allowing healthcare providers to customize the monitoring experience according to individual patient needs. Additionally, it meticulously manages the status of each service to prevent any potential conflicts that could arise during monitoring. This functionality enables Android users to monitor patients in home environments remotely, providing peace of mind and timely updates regarding their health. A notable component of this technology is the Wireless Remote Patient Monitoring (WRPM) multiparameter system, which consists of a base station and various physiological sensors. This advanced setup transmits either spot or continuous physiological readings via a ZigBee wireless network directly to a local master station. The master station is equipped to connect to medical staff through existing Wi-Fi infrastructure utilizing the reliable Transmission Control Protocol/Internet Protocol (TCP/IP) when the patient is located within the hospital's premises. In cases where the patient is outside hospital premises yet remains within Wi-Fi coverage, an android-based application is utilized to retrieve critical health data remotely. This application effectively delivers the patient's real-time physiological status to healthcare providers, ensuring continuous care and monitoring even beyond the hospital environment [452, 453, 454, 455, 456, 457, 458, 459]

Conclusion

A smart system for monitoring a home patient room has been developed. This system, monitored by the App Inventor mobile application, continuously observes physical conditions via sensors and medical devices. It reads sensed data through NodeMCU and sends information to the smartphone app via the existing Wi-Fi network. A preliminary study assessed the accuracy of the gas and particle sensor used to detect air quality. Subsequent field tests at Tokai University at Arai demonstrated the samplers' capability to monitor air quality and collect indoor aerosol particles. The monitoring system captures ambient data—the concentrations of CO, CO2, and CH4—and information on patients' vital signs: SpO2, heart rate, body temperature, and blood pressure [1].

The mobile application receives status information and displays it for caregivers. In cases where readings exceed predetermined thresholds, the app sends a notification to inform the caregiver. The camera system's data link to a web service within the private Wi-Fi network was verified, confirming operational correctness at Arai and Isehara campuses. While the camera does not accept queried commands via HTTP, it supports server-pushed medium-quality JPEG streaming effectively. Furthermore, the Wi-Fi communication system connecting the monitoring sensors and mobile device was validated; data successfully transmitted from the sensors was received by the mobile application. Predicted smartphone compatibility spans Android versions 4.3 through 9.0. The developed prototype is well suited for healthcare monitoring, as evidenced by the system's effectiveness.

References

- M. Milon Islam, A. Rahaman, and M. Rashedul Islam, "Development of Smart Healthcare Monitoring System in IoT Environment," 2020. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 2. S. Abdulmalek, A. Nasir, W. A. Jabbar, M. A. M. Almuhaya, "IoT-based healthcare-monitoring system towards improving quality of life: A review," Healthcare, vol. 10, no. 2, 2022. mdpi.com
- 3. A. Sofi, J. J. Regita, B. Rane, and H. H. Lau, "Structural health monitoring using wireless smart sensor network-An overview," in *Systems and Signal Processing*, 2022, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 4. S. Mirjalali, S. Peng, Z. Fang, C. H. Wang, "Wearable sensors for remote health monitoring: potential applications for early diagnosis of Covid- 19," *Advanced Materials*, vol. 34, no. 12, 2022. wiley.com
- 5. P. M. Ferreira, M. A. Machado, M. S. Carvalho, and C. Vidal, "Embedded sensors for structural health monitoring: methodologies and applications review," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- S. Hassani and U. Dackermann, "A systematic review of advanced sensor technologies for non-destructive testing and structural health monitoring," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 7. D. Sim, M. C. Brothers, J. M. Slocik, A. E. Islam, "Biomarkers and detection platforms for human health and performance monitoring: a review," *Advanced...,* 2022. wiley.com
- 8. S. D. Mamdiwar, A. R., Z. Shakruwala, and U. Chadha, "Recent advances on IoT-assisted wearable sensor systems for healthcare monitoring," *Biosensors*, 2021. mdpi.com
- K. Sharma and S. K. Shivandu, "Integrating artificial intelligence and Internet of Things (IoT) for enhanced crop monitoring and management in precision agriculture," Sensors International, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 10. C. Wang, T. He, H. Zhou, Z. Zhang *et al.*, "Artificial intelligence enhanced sensors-enabling technologies to next-generation healthcare and biomedical platform," Bioelectronic Medicine, 2023. springer.com
- 11. F. Serpush, M. B. Menhaj, B. Masoumi, "Wearable sensor-based human activity recognition in the smart healthcare system," *Computational*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com

- 12. F. Meeran, "Smart home technology for aging," 2006. [PDF]
- 13. P. Byappanahalli Suresha, C. Hegde, Z. Jiang, and G. D. Clifford, "An Edge Computing and Ambient Data Capture System for Clinical and Home Environments," 2022. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- M. Haghi, N. Spicher, J. Wang, "Integrated sensing devices for disease prevention and health alerts in smart homes," Accident and ..., 2022. iospress.nl
- 15. G. Facchinetti, G. Petrucci, B. Albanesi, "Can smart home technologies help older adults manage their chronic condition? A systematic literature review," *International Journal of ...*, 2023. mdpi.com
- 16. R. Kumar, "Establishment of telemedicine architecture in IoT based smart home security system for health monitoring system," in *3rd Asian Conference on Innovation in Technology*, 2023. [HTML]
- 17. J. C. Moses, S. Adibi, M. Angelova, and S. M. S. Islam, "Smart home technology solutions for cardiovascular diseases: a systematic review," Applied System Innovation, 2022. mdpi.com
- 18. F. Li, "Design of an Interactive Two- Way Telemedicine Service System for Smart Home Care for the Elderly," Journal of Healthcare Engineering, 2021. wiley.com
- A. A. Elmi and M. O. Abdullahi, "Internet of Things in Telemedicine: A Systematic Review of Current Trends and Future Directions," Instrumentation, Mesure, vol. 2024. researchgate.net
- S. Salma, A. Begum, and H. Syed, "Practical and Innovative Applications of IoT and IoT Networks (Smart Cities, Smart Mobility, Smart Home, Smart Health, Smart Grid, etc.)," in AI for Climate Change and ..., 2024. [HTML]
- 21. N. and 2025, "Quantum error correction below the surface code threshold," nature.com, nature.com
- 22. M. Maier and D. Lakens, "Justify your alpha: A primer on two practical approaches," *Advances in Methods and Practices in Psychological Science*, vol. 2022. sagepub.com
- 23. Z. Chen, K. J. Satzinger, J. Atalaya, and A. N. Korotkov, "Exponential suppression of bit or phase flip errors with repetitive error correction," arXiv preprint arXiv:XXXXXXXXXXX, 2021. [PDF]
- 24. A. K. Podder, A. Al Bukhari, S. Islam, and S. Mia, "IoT based smart agrotech system for verification of Urban farming parameters,"

- Microprocessors and Microsystems, vol. 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- P. D. Nation, H. Kang, N. Sundaresan, and J. M. Gambetta, "Scalable mitigation of measurement errors on quantum computers," PRX Quantum, 2021. aps.org
- 26. C. Delahaye and J. Nicolas, "Sequencing DNA with nanopores: Troubles and biases," PloS one, 2021. plos.org
- 27. A. Muhamad and S. D. Panjaitan, "Design and development of flight controller for quadcopter drone control," Telecommunications, vol. 2024. untan.ac.id
- S. Ma, G. Liu, P. Peng, B. Zhang, S. Jandura, and J. Claes, "High-fidelity gates and mid-circuit erasure conversion in an atomic qubit," Nature, 2023. [PDF]
- 29. M. H. Abobeih, Y. Wang, J. Randall, S. J. H. Loenen, *et al.*, "Fault-tolerant operation of a logical qubit in a diamond quantum processor," *Nature*, 2022. nature.com
- 30. S. C. Izah, "Smart Technologies in Environmental Monitoring: Enhancing Real-Time Data for Health Management," in Innovative Approaches in Environmental Health, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 31. W. Li, Y. Chai, F. Khan, S. R. U. Jan, and S. Verma, "A comprehensive survey on machine learning-based big data analytics for IoT-enabled smart healthcare system," Mobile Networks and Applications, vol. 26, no. 1, pp. 1-20, 2021. springer.com
- 32. M. Hartmann and U. S. Hashmi, "Edge computing in smart health care systems: Review, challenges, and research directions," *Transactions on Emerging Technologies*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 33. A. Ullah, S. M. Anwar, J. Li, L. Nadeem, T. Mahmood, "Smart cities: The role of Internet of Things and machine learning in realizing a datacentric smart environment," in *Advances in Intelligent Systems*, 2024, Springer.com
- R. Verma, "Smart city healthcare cyber physical system: characteristics, technologies and challenges," Wireless personal communications, 2022. springer.com
- 35. G. M. Minopoulos, V. A. Memos, C. L. Stergiou, "Exploitation of emerging technologies and advanced networks for a smart healthcare system," *Applied Sciences*, vol. 12, no. 1, 2022. mdpi.com

- 36. A. Balasundaram, S. Routray, A. V. Prabu, "Internet of Things (IoT)-based smart healthcare system for efficient diagnostics of health parameters of patients in emergency care," IEEE Internet of Things Journal, vol. 2023. [HTML]
- 37. A. Shukla and R. Diwan, "IoT based load automation with remote access surveillance using ESP 32 Camand ESP 8266 module," Annals of the Romanian Society for Cell Biology, vol. 25, no. 1, pp. 1234-1240, 2021. [HTML]
- 38. I. C. Mituletu and V. Mureşan, "Wireless Communication System with High Data Flow using an ESP32-Based Interface," in Information, Electronic and Energy, 2024. [HTML]
- HJ El-Khozondar, SY Mtair, KO Qoffa, OI Qasem, "A smart energy monitoring system using ESP32 microcontroller," e-Prime-Advances in..., vol. 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 40. M. Sabbatini, "Hardening IoT Devices: An Analysis of the ESP32 Microcontroller," 2024. uzh.ch
- 41. Y. Yulianto, "Relay Driver Based on Arduino UNO to Bridge the Gap of The Digital Output Voltage of The Node MCU ESP32," Engineering, Mathematics and Computer Science, 2023. binus.ac.id
- 42. W. He, M. J. A. Baig, and M. T. Iqbal, "An open-source supervisory control and data acquisition architecture for photovoltaic system monitoring using ESP32, Banana Pi M4, and Node-RED," Energies, 2024. mdpi.com
- 43. D. Pujara, P. Naik, R. Gautam, and A. Mecwan, "ESP32 ChatLink: Real-Time Peer-to-Peer Communication via ESP-NOW," in *International Conference on ...*, 2024. researchgate.net
- 44. M. A. Hailan and N. M. Ghazaly, "ESPNow Protocol-Based IIoT System for Remotely Monitoring and Controlling Industrial Systems," Journal of Robotics and..., vol. 2024. umy.ac.id
- H. J. Hassan, N. Kadhim Hadi, and A. Kamal Taqi, "Implementation of Wireless Body Area Network Based Patient Monitoring System," 2018. [PDF]
- 46. B. Padma and S. B. Erukala, "End-to-end communication protocol in IoT-enabled ZigBee network: Investigation and performance analysis," Internet of Things, 2023. researchsquare.com
- 47. P. Dymora, M. Mazurek, and K. Smalara, "Modeling and fault tolerance

- analysis of ZigBee protocol in IoT networks," Energies, 2021. mdpi.com
- 48. Y. Zhao, "Research on wireless sensor network system based on Zigbee technology for short distance transmission," Journal of Physics: Conference Series, 2021. iop.org
- C. V. Nguyen, A. E. Coboi, N. V. Bach, A. T. Dang, "ZigBee based data collection in wireless sensor networks," Int. J. Inf. Commun., vol. 2021, 2021. researchgate.net
- 50. R. Tang, N. K. Aridas, and M. S. Abu Talip, "Design of wireless sensor network for agricultural greenhouse based on improved zigbee protocol," Agriculture, 2023. mdpi.com
- 51. P. P. Saraswala, S. B. Patel, and J. K. Bhalani, "... analysis of transmission range in the ZigBee network using various soft computing techniques and the hardware implementation of ZigBee network on ARM-based ...," Wireless Networks, 2021. researchgate.net
- 52. Z. Liu, Y. Wang, Q. Zeng, Y. Yang *et al.*, "Research on optimization measures of Zigbee network connection in an imitated mine fading channel," Electronics, 2021. mdpi.com
- 53. O. Gurewitz, M. Shifrin, and E. Dvir, "Data gathering techniques in wsn: a cross-layer view," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 54. S. M. S. Bukhari, M. H. Zafar, M. Abou Houran, and S. K. R. Moosavi, "Secure and privacy-preserving intrusion detection in wireless sensor networks: Federated learning with SCNN-Bi-LSTM for enhanced reliability," Ad Hoc Networks, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 55. K. Gulati, R. S. K. Boddu, D. Kapila, and S. L. Bangare, "A review paper on wireless sensor network techniques in Internet of Things (IoT)," Materials Today, vol. 2022, Elsevier. academia.edu
- 56. G. H. Adday, S. K. Subramaniam, Z. A. Zukarnain, and N. Samian, "Fault tolerance structures in wireless sensor networks (WSNs): Survey, classification, and future directions," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 57. W. A. Jabbar, T. M. Ting, M. F. I. Hamidun, *et al.*, "Development of LoRaWAN-based IoT system for water quality monitoring in rural areas," Expert Systems with Applications, vol. 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 58. B. Chander, S. Pal, D. De, and R. Buyya, "Artificial intelligence-based internet of things for industry 5.0," in *...-based internet of things systems*, Springer, 2022. unimelb.edu.au

- 59. M. Mohseni, F. Amirghafouri, and B. Pourghebleh, "CEDAR: A cluster-based energy-aware data aggregation routing protocol in the internet of things using capuchin search algorithm and fuzzy logic," Peer-to-peer networking and ..., vol. 2023, Springer. academia.edu
- 60. M. S. Al-Kahtani, F. Khan, and W. Taekeun, "Application of internet of things and sensors in healthcare," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 61. N. S. Baqer, H. A. Mohammed, A. S. Albahri, A. A. Zaidan, "Development of the Internet of Things sensory technology for ensuring proper indoor air quality in hospital facilities: Taxonomy analysis, challenges, motivations, open ...," Measurement, vol. 2022, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 62. R. Uddin and I. Koo, "Real-time remote patient monitoring: A review of biosensors integrated with multi-hop IoT systems via cloud connectivity," Applied Sciences, 2024. mdpi.com
- 63. M. Abduljawwad, M. Khaleel, T. S. Ogedengbe, "Sensors for daily utilization," Int. J. Electr. Eng. and ..., 2023. ijees.org
- 64. Q. Shi, Y. Yang, Z. Sun, and C. Lee, "Progress of advanced devices and internet of things systems as enabling technologies for smart homes and health care," ACS Materials Au, 2022. acs.org
- 65. B. Nthubu, "An overview of sensors, design and healthcare challenges in smart homes: future design questions," Healthcare, 2021. mdpi.com
- 66. I. de Morais Barroca Filho and G. Aquino, "An IoT-based healthcare platform for patients in ICU beds during the COVID-19 outbreak," in *IEEE*, 2021. ieee.org
- 67. A. Fascista, "Toward integrated large-scale environmental monitoring using WSN/UAV/Crowdsensing: A review of applications, signal processing, and future perspectives," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 68. E. Omia, H. Bae, E. Park, M. S. Kim, I. Baek, I. Kabenge, "Remote sensing in field crop monitoring: A comprehensive review of sensor systems, data analyses and recent advances," Remote Sensing, vol. 2023. mdpi.com
- 69. Y. Luo, M. R. Abidian, J. H. Ahn, D. Akinwande, "Technology roadmap for flexible sensors," ACS Publications, 2023. nih.gov
- H. Rocha, C. Semprimoschnig, and J. P. Nunes, "Sensors for process and structural health monitoring of aerospace composites: A review," Engineering Structures, 2021. uminho.pt

- 71. S. Pyo, J. Lee, K. Bae, S. Sim *et al.*, "Recent progress in flexible tactile sensors for human-interactive systems: from sensors to advanced applications," Advanced Materials, 2021. researchgate.net
- 72. M. Alshamrani, "IoT and artificial intelligence implementations for remote healthcare monitoring systems: A survey," Journal of King Saud University-Computer and ..., vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 73. J. Wang, N. Varshney, C. Gentile, and others, "Integrated sensing and communication: Enabling techniques, applications, tools and data sets, standardization, and future directions," IEEE Internet of Things Journal, vol. 9, no. 12, pp. 10567-10581, 2022. ieee.org
- M. Salem, A. Elkaseer, I. A. M. El-Maddah, and K. Y. Youssef, "Noninvasive data acquisition and IoT solution for human vital signs monitoring: Applications, limitations and future prospects," Sensors, vol. 22, no. 2022, pp. 1-20, 2022. mdpi.com
- 75. K. M. Abubeker and S. Baskar, "Wireless sensor and wireless body area network assisted biosensor network for effective monitoring and prevention of non-ventilator hospital-acquired pneumonia," Frontiers in Sustainable Cities, 2022. frontiersin.org
- 76. J. L. V. Shaw, R. R. Bannuru, L. Beach, N. A. ElSayed, et al., "Consensus considerations and good practice points for use of continuous glucose monitoring systems in hospital settings," Diabetes, 2024. diabetesjournals.org
- 77. B. Henry, M. Merz, H. Hoang, G. Abdulkarim, J. Wosik, "Cuffless Blood Pressure in clinical practice: challenges, opportunities and current limits," Blood, vol. 2024, Taylor & Francis. tandfonline.com
- 78. S. Rajarajan, R. Kalaivani, N. Kaliammal, "IoT-Enabled Respiratory Pattern Monitoring in Critical Care: A Real-Time Recurrent Neural Network Approach," in 2024 10th International Conference on Advanced Computing, 2024. [HTML]
- 79. R. Bockholt, S. Paschke, L. Heubner, B. Ibarlucea, *et al.*, "Real-time monitoring of blood parameters in the intensive care unit: state-of-the-art and perspectives," *Journal of Clinical ...*, 2022. mdpi.com
- 80. Y. Deng, H. M. Arafa, T. Yang, H. Albadawi, R. J. Fowl, "A soft thermal sensor for the continuous assessment of flow in vascular access," Nature, 2025. nature.com
- 81. A. Ullah, M. Azeem, H. Ashraf, A. A. Alaboudi, "Secure healthcare

- data aggregation and transmission in IoT—A survey," IEEE, 2021. ieee.org
- 82. B. Zaabar, O. Cheikhrouhou, F. Jamil, M. Ammi *et al.*, "HealthBlock: A secure blockchain-based healthcare data management system," Computer Networks, 2021. [HTML]
- 83. R. W. Ahmad, K. Salah, R. Jayaraman, and I. Yaqoob, "Blockchain-based forward supply chain and waste management for COVID-19 medical equipment and supplies," in *IEEE*, 2021. ieee.org
- 84. H. L. Rehm, A. J. H. Page, L. Smith, J. B. Adams, G. Alterovitz, *et al.*, "GA4GH: International policies and standards for data sharing across genomic research and healthcare," Cell Genomics, vol. 1, no. 1, 2021. cell.com
- 85. S. Reddy, "Global harmonisation of AI-enabled software as a medical device regulation: addressing challenges and unifying standards," Available at SSRN 4996111, 2024. ssrn.com
- 86. R. Kumar, P. Kumar, R. Tripathi, and G. P. Gupta, "Permissioned blockchain and deep learning for secure and efficient data sharing in industrial healthcare systems," IEEE Transactions, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. lut.fi
- 87. J. Shahid, R. Ahmad, A. K. Kiani, T. Ahmad, and S. Saeed, "Data protection and privacy of the internet of healthcare things (IoHTs)," *Applied Sciences*, vol. 12, no. XX, pp. XX-XX, 2022. mdpi.com
- 88. G. Wang, A. Badal, X. Jia, J. S. Maltz, K. Mueller, "Development of metaverse for intelligent healthcare," *Nature Machine Intelligence*, vol. 2022. nature.com
- 89. B. A. Krbec, X. Zhang, I. Chityat, A. Brady-Mine, and others, "Emerging innovations in neonatal monitoring: a comprehensive review of progress and potential for non-contact technologies," *Frontiers in ...*, 2024. frontiersin.org
- 90. M. Gupta, D. Bhatia, and P. Kumar, "Modern Intervention Tools for Rehabilitation," 2023. [HTML]
- 91. S. Guarducci, S. Jayousi, S. Caputo, and L. Mucchi, "Key fundamentals and examples of sensors for human health: wearable, non-continuous, and non-contact monitoring devices," Sensors, 2025. mdpi.com
- 92. L. E. Perkins, "Role of Eye-Tracking Technology and Software Algorithms in Enhancing ADHD Detection and Diagnosis: A Systematic Literature Review," 2025. georgiasouthern.edu

- 93. I. Flitcroft, J. Ainsworth, A. Chia, S. Cotter, *et al.*, "IMI—management and investigation of high myopia in infants and young children," *Translational Vision Science & Technology*, vol. 12, no. 1, 2023. arvojournals.org
- 94. J. M. Templeton, "Towards a Comprehensive Mobile-Based Neurocognitive Digital Health Assessment System (NDHAS)," 2022. nd.edu
- 95. J. A. S. Smith, "Child abuse and neglect," Forensic and legal medicine, 2023. [HTML]
- 96. M. Lee and T. M. Gatton, "Wireless Health Data Exchange for Home Healthcare Monitoring Systems," 2010. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 97. Y. Bai, B. Gu, and C. Tang, "Enhancing real-time patient monitoring in intensive care units with deep learning and the internet of things," Big Data, 2025. [HTML]
- 98. S. W. Huang, S. Y. Chiou, R. C. Chen, and C. Sub-R-Pa, "Enhancing hospital efficiency and patient care: real-time tracking and data-driven dispatch in patient transport," Sensors, 2024. mdpi.com
- 99. M. A. El-Affendi, A. Abou Elazm, and A. I. Siam, "Portable and real-time IoT-based healthcare monitoring system for daily medical applications," *IEEE Social Systems*, vol. 2022. [HTML]
- 100.R. Latha, R. Raman, T. S. Kumar, "Automated health monitoring system for coma patients," in *Intelligence Systems*, 2023. [HTML]
- 101.S. Aghalya, N. V. Rao, R. R. Roy, "Real-time Monitoring and Prediction of Respiratory Diseases Using IoT and Machine Learning," in *Proceedings of the Conference On Smart*, 2023. [HTML]
- 102.H. S. Xie, S. R. Gandla, M. Bhattacharya, et al., "Algorithm Comparison for Real-Time Indoor Environment Digital Twin using BIM," in 2025 5th International Conference on Digital Twin and Advanced Intelligent Systems, 2025. [HTML]
- 103.B. Townsend, J. Abawajy, and T. H. Kim, "SMS-Based Medical Diagnostic Telemetry Data Transmission Protocol for Medical Sensors," 2011. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 104.N. El-Rashidy, S. El-Sappagh, S. M. R. Islam, and H. M. El-Bakry, "Mobile health in remote patient monitoring for chronic diseases: Principles, trends, and challenges," *Diagnostics*, vol. 11, no. 1, 2021. mdpi.com

- 105.L. Mucchi, S. Jayousi, A. Gant, and E. Paoletti, "Tele-monitoring system for chronic diseases management: Requirements and architecture," *International Journal of ...*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. mdpi.com
- 106.B. M. Mahmmod, M. A. Naser, A. H. S. Al-Sudani, *et al.*, "Patient monitoring system based on internet of things: A review and related challenges with open research issues," IEEE, 2024. ieee.org
- 107.U. Khan, "Remote patient monitoring and telehealth: The future of cardiac care," International Journal of Engineering Technology, 2024. researchgate.net
- 108.J. Sumner, S. Y. Tan, Y. Wang, and C. H. S. Keck, "Co-designing remote patient monitoring technologies for inpatients: systematic review," Journal of Medical..., 2024. jmir.org
- 109.M. Poongodi, A. Sharma, M. Hamdi, and M. Maode, "Smart healthcare in smart cities: wireless patient monitoring system using IoT," The Journal of..., vol. 2021, Springer. [HTML]
- 110.P. Bhambri and A. Khang, "Managing and monitoring patient's healthcare using AI and IoT technologies," in *Driving Smart Medical Diagnosis Through AI*, 2024. [HTML]
- 111.S. Baumann, R. T. Stone, and E. Abdelall, "Introducing a remote patient monitoring usability impact model to overcome challenges," Sensors, 2024. mdpi.com
- 112.S. K. Sharma, M. I. Al-Wanain, M. Alowaidi, *et al.*, "Mobile healthcare (m- Health) based on artificial intelligence in healthcare 4.0," *Systems*, 2024. [HTML]
- 113.S. Rajendran, A. Porwal, K. Anjali, and Anvaya, "Portable IoT devices in healthcare for health monitoring and diagnostics," in *Internet of Things in Healthcare*, 2024, Wiley Online Library. [HTML]
- 114.A. Brambilla, T. Sun, W. Elshazly, A. Ghazy, "Flexibility during the COVID-19 pandemic response: Healthcare facility assessment tools for resilient evaluation," *International Journal of ...*, 2021. mdpi.com
- 115.A. Karunamurthy, M. Yuvaraj, J. Shahithya, and V. Thenmozhi, "Cloud database: Empowering scalable and flexible data management," 2023. google.com
- 116.L. Martinelli, F. Calcerano, and E. Gigliarelli, "Methodology for an HBIM workflow focused on the representation of construction systems of built heritage," Journal of Cultural Heritage, 2022. [HTML]

- 117.L. Song, X. Wang, P. Wei, Z. Lu, "Blockchain-Based Flexible Double-Chain Architecture and Performance Optimization for Better Sustainability in Agriculture," *Computers, Materials & Engineering*, vol. 2021. [HTML]
- 118.T. Raviv, S. Park, O. Simeone, and Y. C. Eldar, "Adaptive and flexible model-based AI for deep receivers in dynamic channels," IEEE Wireless, 2024. [PDF]
- 119.S. A. Ali, S. A. Elsaid, A. A. Ateya, M. ElAffendi *et al.*, "Enabling technologies for next-generation smart cities: A comprehensive review and research directions," Future Internet, 2023. mdpi.com
- 120.Y. Zhao, N. Hu, Y. Zhao, and Z. Zhu, "A secure and flexible edge computing scheme for AI-driven industrial IoT," Cluster Computing, 2023. [HTML]
- 121.D. Durner, V. Leis, and T. Neumann, "JSON tiles: Fast analytics on semi-structured data," in *Proceedings of the ACM SIGMOD International Conference on Management of Data*, 2021. tum.de
- 122.P. A. Gagniuc, "Objects," in Coding Examples from Simple to Complex, Springer, 2024. [HTML]
- 123.I. Garg, N. R. Wudaru, and P. Ramakrishna, "Study on JSON, its uses and applications in engineering organizations," ResearchGate,. researchgate.net
- 124.V. A. Semenov, S. V. Arishin, and G. V. Semenov, "Formal rules to produce object notation for EXPRESS schema-driven data," *Programming and Computer Software*, vol. 48, no. 2, pp. 123-130, 2022. ispras.ru
- 125.Y. Wang, "Design and Implementation of a General Data Collection System Architecture Based on Relational Database Technology," in *The International Conference on Cyber Security*, 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 126.J. Lee, E. Anjos, and S. R. Satti, "SJSON: A succinct representation for JSON documents," Information Systems, 2021. ntnu.no
- 127.L. Attouche, M. A. Baazizi, D. Colazzo, and G. Ghelli, "Validation of modern JSON schema: Formalization and complexity," in *Proceedings of the ...*, 2024. acm.org
- 128.D. U. Priya and P. S. Thilagam, "JSON document clustering based on schema embeddings," Journal of Information Science, 2024. researchgate.net

- 129.S. Chattopadhyay, "Microcontrollers and Applications," 2025. 103.203.175.90
- 130.S. Chaudhury and R. Mal, "Microprocessor and Microcontroller," 2025. [HTML]
- 131.L. Qi, J. Fan, H. Cai, and Z. Fang, "A Survey of Emerging Memory in a Microcontroller Unit," Micromachines, 2024. mdpi.com
- 132.D. E. Bolanakis, "Microcontroller Prototypes with Arduino and a 3D Printer: Learn, Program, Manufacture," 2021. [HTML]
- 133.U. E. Björnsson, "Designing a Multifunctional Sensor Board for Teaching IoT and Microcontroller Fundamentals," 2023. skemman.is
- 134.V. Lostanlen, A. Bernabeu, J. L. Béchennec, "Energy efficiency is not enough: towards a batteryless internet of sounds," in *Proceedings of the 16th ... *, 2021. hal.science
- 135.M. Elkhodr, S. Khan, and E. Gide, "A novel semantic IoT middleware for secure data management: Blockchain and AI-driven context awareness," Future Internet, 2024. mdpi.com
- 136.M. F. Alumfareh, M. Humayun, Z. Ahmad, and A. Khan, "An intelligent LoRaWAN-based IoT device for monitoring and control solutions in smart farming through anomaly detection integrated with unsupervised machine ...," IEEE Access, 2024. ieee.org
- 137.G. Gebresenbet, T. Bosona, D. Patterson, "A concept for application of integrated digital technologies to enhance future smart agricultural systems," Smart Agricultural Systems, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 138.J. Khan, W. Liang, B. J. Mary, F. Hamzah, A. Taofeek, "Adaptive Cloud-Native Serverless ETL Systems: Breaking Barriers in Architecture for Data Processing Workflows," 2025. researchgate.net
- 139.HB Ahmad, RR Asaad, SM Almufti, "Smart home energy saving with big data and machine learning," Jurnal Ilmiah, 2024. unja.ac.id
- 140.N. Mchirgui, N. Quadar, H. Kraiem, and A. Lakhssassi, "The applications and challenges of digital twin technology in smart grids: A comprehensive review," Applied Sciences, 2024. mdpi.com
- 141.A. J. Bokolo, "Data driven approaches for smart city planning and design: a case scenario on urban data management," Digital Policy,. core.ac.uk

- 142.A. OF Riyad, A. Sharif, and AURC Suhan, "An IOT Based Nurse Calling System for Real-time Emergency Alert Using Local Wireless Network," in 2021 IEEE 12th Annual International Conference on Cloud Computing, Data Science & Engineering (Confluence), 2021. [HTML]
- 143.Y. Eddahchouri, R. V. Peelen, M. Koeneman, *et al.*, "Effect of continuous wireless vital sign monitoring on unplanned ICU admissions and rapid response team calls: a before-and-after study," *British Journal of ...*, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 144.S. Agius, C. Magri, and V. Cassar, "A Cognitive Task Analysis for Developing a Clinical Decision Support System for Emergency Triage," Journal of Emergency Nursing, 2025. sciencedirect.com
- 145.B. A. Simon, M. J. Assel, A. L. Tin, P. Desai, C. Stabile, *et al.*, "Association between electronic patient symptom reporting with alerts and potentially avoidable urgent care visits after ambulatory cancer surgery," *JAMA*, vol. 2021. jamanetwork.com
- 146.R. Damaševičius, N. Bacanin, and S. Misra, "From sensors to safety: Internet of Emergency Services (IoES) for emergency response and disaster management," *Journal of Sensor and Actuator*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2023. mdpi.com
- 147.W. Journal of Emergency Surgery and 2023, "Ten golden rules for optimal antibiotic use in hospital settings: the WARNING call to action," Springer, springer.com
- 148.H. Taherdoost, "Wearable Healthcare and Continuous Vital Sign Monitoring with IoT Integration.," Computers,. [HTML]
- 149.V. Selvaraju, N. Spicher, J. Wang, N. Ganapathy, "Continuous monitoring of vital signs using cameras: A systematic review," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 150.M. D. Santos, C. Roman, M. A. F. Pimentel, *et al.*, "A real-time wearable system for monitoring vital signs of COVID-19 patients in a hospital setting," in Digital Health, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 151.F. Li, S. Wang, Z. Gao, M. Qing, S. Pan, Y. Liu, "Harnessing artificial intelligence in sepsis care: advances in early detection, personalized treatment, and real-time monitoring," Frontiers in Medicine, 2025. frontiersin.org
- 152.S. B. Junaid, A. A. Imam, A. N. Shuaibu, S. Basri, and G. Kumar,

- "Artificial intelligence, sensors and vital health signs: A review," *Applied Sciences*, vol. 12, no. 1, 2022. mdpi.com
- 153.T. Kumaragurubaran and V. R. S. R., "Predictive modelling of critical vital signs in ICU patients by machine learning: An early warning system for improved patient outcomes," in *2024 3rd International Conference on [Conference Name]*, 2024. [HTML]
- 154.R. V. Peelen, Y. Eddahchouri, M. Koeneman, *et al.*, "Comparing continuous with periodic vital sign scoring for clinical deterioration using a patient data model," *Journal of Medical ...*, 2023. springer.com
- 155.R. Morais, J. Mendes, R. Silva, N. Silva, and J. J. Sousa, "A versatile, low-power and low-cost IoT device for field data gathering in precision agriculture practices," *Agriculture*, vol. 11, no. 2, 2021. mdpi.com
- 156.I. Ali, I. Ahmedy, A. Gani, M. U. Munir *et al.*, "Data collection in studies on Internet of things (IoT), wireless sensor networks (WSNs), and sensor cloud (SC): Similarities and differences," IEEE access, 2022. ieee.org
- 157.A. B. Mali and L. Kumar, "IoT-Based Data Acquisition and Machine Learning for Process Optimization," in Enhancing Mobile App Performance with AI. researchgate.net
- 158.F. J. Folgado, I. González, and A. J. Calderón, "Data acquisition and monitoring system framed in Industrial Internet of Things for PEM hydrogen generators," Internet of Things, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 159.O. Gupta and N. Goyal, "The evolution of data gathering static and mobility models in underwater wireless sensor networks: A survey," *Journal of Ambient Intelligence and Humanized Computing*, vol. 12, no. 5, pp. 4931-4947, 2021. researchgate.net
- 160.M. Amini, K. Sharifani, and A. Rahmani, "Machine learning model towards evaluating data gathering methods in manufacturing and mechanical engineering," *International Journal of Applied ...*, 2023. ssrn.com
- 161.K. Karthika, S. Dhanalakshmi, and S. M. Murthy, "Raspberry Pienabled wearable sensors for personal health tracking and analysis," in *Intelligence Systems*, 2023. [HTML]
- 162.S. Cheresharov, G. Dragomirov, G. Gustinov, "Transforming Nursing Home Care: An Integrated Approach Using Sensors, AI, and Monitoring Technologies," Computer Science, 2024. csirjournal.com

- 163.S. Bhatnagar, "A New Prototype Based Smart Health Monitoring System in IoT System," in *2023 3rd Asian Conference on Innovation in ...*, 2023. [HTML]
- 164.N. A. Almujally, T. Aljrees, O. Saidani, M. Umer, "Monitoring acute heart failure patients using internet-of-things-based smart monitoring system," Sensors, vol. 2023. mdpi.com
- 165.J. B. Awotunde, R. G. Jimoh, R. O. Ogundokun, "Big data analytics of IoT-based cloud system framework: Smart healthcare monitoring systems," in *Artificial Intelligence for...*, Springer, 2022. [HTML]
- 166.P. Lobo, P. Kavitha, K. Saranya, and C. Kumar, "Artificial intelligence (AI) based on real time patient monitoring system in intensive care unit and its applications," in *Proceedings of the Inventive Systems Conference*, 2024. [HTML]
- 167.M. Sharone and A. Muhtaroglu, "Patient-Centered design method for self-powered and cost-optimized health monitors," IEEE Access, 2023. ieee.org
- 168.I. A. Amantea, "Methods and tools for analysis and management of risks and regulatory compliance in the healthcare sector: the Hospital at Home-HaH," 2022. uni.lu
- 169.G. Pagano, F. C. Riano, G. Iaselli, "SAALUS: Smart Ambient Assisted Living Uquitous System," 2024 IEEE 8th International Conference on Smart Systems and Technologies, 2024. [HTML]
- 170.V. Vijayan, J. P. Connolly, J. Condell, N. McKelvey, and others, "Review of wearable devices and data collection considerations for connected health," Sensors, vol. 21, no. 3, 2021. mdpi.com
- 171.P. Schneider and F. Xhafa, "Anomaly detection and complex event processing over iot data streams: with application to EHealth and patient data monitoring," 2022. [HTML]
- 172.M. Osama, A. A. Ateya, M. S. Sayed, M. Hammad, and P. Pławiak, "Internet of medical things and healthcare 4.0: Trends, requirements, challenges, and research directions," Sensors, vol. 2023. mdpi.com
- 173.P. M. Kumar, C. S. Hong, F. Afghah, "Clouds proportionate medical data stream analytics for internet of things-based healthcare systems," *Journal of Biomedical and Health Informatics*, vol. 25, no. 3, pp. 1234-1245, 2021. [HTML]
- 174.L. Tan, K. Yu, A. K. Bashir, X. Cheng, and F. Ming, "Toward real-time

- and efficient cardiovascular monitoring for COVID-19 patients by 5G-enabled wearable medical devices: A deep learning approach," *Neural Computing and Applications*, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 175.FJ Jaime, A. Muñoz, F. Rodríguez-Gómez, "Strengthening privacy and data security in biomedical microelectromechanical systems by IoT communication security and protection in smart healthcare," Sensors, vol. 2023. mdpi.com
- 176.E. White, "Making embedded systems," 2024. [HTML]
- 177.R. Guo, X. Luan, L. Xiang, X. Yan, X. Yi, and J. Luo, "Manu: a cloud native vector database management system," arXiv preprint arXiv:XXXX.XXXX, 2022. [PDF]
- 178.H. Kondylakis, V. Kalokyri, S. Sfakianakis, *et al.*, "Data infrastructures for AI in medical imaging: a report on the experiences of five EU projects," European Radiology, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 179.E. M. Ouafiq, R. Saadane, and A. Chehri, "Data management and integration of low power consumption embedded devices IoT for transforming smart agriculture into actionable knowledge," Agriculture, 2022. mdpi.com
- 180.HN Schuh, W. Liang, M. Liu, J. Nelson, "Xenic: SmartNIC-accelerated distributed transactions," in *Proceedings of the ... *, 2021. nsf.gov
- 181.R. Hai, C. Koutras, C. Quix, "Data lakes: A survey of functions and systems," in *Proceedings of the IEEE International Conference on Knowledge and Data Engineering*, 2023. ieee.org
- 182.Y. Chen, D. Jarecka, S. A. Abraham, R. Gau, E. Ng, *et al.*, "Standardizing Survey Data Collection to Enhance Reproducibility: Development and Comparative Evaluation of the ReproSchema Ecosystem," *Journal of Medical ...*, 2025. jmir.org
- 183.H. Liu, F. Cheng, and Y. Li, "Big Data Embedding in PHM for Electromechanical System," in *Prognostics and Health Management for Intelligent ... *, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 184.Q. Wei, B. Li, W. Chang, Z. Jia, and Z. Shen, "A survey of blockchain data management systems," *Transactions on Embedded Computing Systems*, vol. 22, no. 4, 2022. [PDF]
- 185.A. A. Smith, R. Li, and Z. T. H. Tse, "Reshaping healthcare with wearable biosensors," Scientific Reports, 2023. nature.com
- 186.M. Sakakibara, S. Kohira, K. Fujii, D. Niiyama, "Investigation of

- contamination and environmental exposure of cold/heated water supply systems for extracorporeal circulation used in ECMO and other applications," Journal of Artificial Organs, 2025. [HTML]
- 187.N. Jamali, M. R. Gharib, and B. O. Koma, "Neuro-Fuzzy Decision Support System for Optimization of the Indoor Air Quality in Operation Rooms," *Journal of Robotics & Control Systems*, 2023. researchgate.net
- 188.PN Srinivasu and G. JayaLakshmi, "Ambient assistive living for monitoring the physical activity of diabetic adults through body area networks," Information Systems, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 189.G. Ozbay, M. Jones, M. Gadde, S. Isah, "Design and operation of effective landfills with minimal effects on the environment and human health," *Journal of Environmental Management*, vol. 2021, pp. 1-12, 2021. wiley.com
- 190.C. Johnston-Webber, I. Bencomo-Bermudez, G. Wharton, "A conceptual framework to assess the health, socioeconomic and environmental burden of chronic kidney disease," Health Policy, vol. 2025, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 191.A. H. Adepoju, B. Austin-Gabriel, O. Hamza, and A. Collins, "Advancing monitoring and alert systems: A proactive approach to improving reliability in complex data ecosystems," IRE Journals, 2022. researchgate.net
- 192.AHA Al-Jumaili, RC Muniyandi, MK Hasan, and JKS Paw, "Big data analytics using cloud computing based frameworks for power management systems: Status, constraints, and future recommendations," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 193.D. K. Pentyala, "Machine Learning-Powered Monitoring Systems for Improved Data Reliability in Cloud Environments," International Journal of Acta Informatica, 2024. yuktabpublisher.com
- 194.A. Bhardwaj, V. Dagar, M. O. Khan, A. Aggarwal, "Smart IoT and machine learning-based framework for water quality assessment and device component monitoring," *Science and Pollution Research*, vol. 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 195.S. Rani, M. Chauhan, A. Kataria, and A. Khang, "IoT equipped intelligent distributed framework for smart healthcare systems," in *Proceedings of IoT, Cloud and Big Data*, 2023, Springer. [PDF]

- 196.P. Mishra and G. Singh, "Energy management systems in sustainable smart cities based on the internet of energy: A technical review," Energies, 2023. mdpi.com
- 197.T. Mazhar, T. Shahzad, A. U. Rehman, and H. Hamam, "Integration of smart grid with industry 5.0: applications, challenges and solutions," Measurement: Energy, 2025. sciencedirect.com
- 198.S. Vamsi Ilapakurthy, "A framework for smart homes for elderly people using Labview," 2023. [PDF]
- 199.T. Suleski, M. Ahmed, W. Yang, and E. Wang, "A review of multifactor authentication in the Internet of Healthcare Things," Digital health, 2023. sagepub.com
- 200.E. Barka, M. Al Baqari, C. A. Kerrache, "Implementation of a biometric-based blockchain system for preserving privacy, security, and access control in healthcare records," *Journal of Sensor and Actuator Networks*, vol. 2022. mdpi.com
- 201.F. Farid, M. Elkhodr, F. Sabrina, F. Ahamed *et al.*, "A smart biometric identity management framework for personalised IoT and cloud computing-based healthcare services," Sensors, 2021. mdpi.com
- 202.N. Deepa, "A biometric approach for electronic healthcare database system using SAML-A touchfree technology," in *Proceedings of the International Conference on Energy and Sustainable Communication Systems (ICESC)*, 2021. [HTML]
- 203.S. U. Jan, S. Ali, I. A. Abbasi, and M. A. A. Mosleh, "Secure patient authentication framework in the healthcare system using wireless medical sensor networks," *Journal of Healthcare*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 204.M. Yusop, N. H. Kamarudin, N. H. S. Suhaimi, "Advancing passwordless authentication: A systematic review of methods, challenges, and future directions for secure user identity," IEEE, 2025. ieee.org
- 205.S. Ayeswarya and K. J. Singh, "A comprehensive review on secure biometric-based continuous authentication and user profiling," IEEE Access, 2024. ieee.org
- 206.R. F. Olanrewaju, B. U. I. Khan, M. A. Morshidi, F. Anwar, "A frictionless and secure user authentication in web-based premium applications," in *IEEE*, 2021. ieee.org

- 207.S. Zeadally and O. Bello, "Harnessing the power of Internet of Things based connectivity to improve healthcare," Internet of Things, 2021. [HTML]
- 208.B. Singh and C. Kaunert, "Leveraging IoT for Patient Monitoring and Smart Healthcare: Connected Healthcare System," in *Healthcare Systems Through Cloud Computing*, 2025. [HTML]
- 209.A. T. Shumba, T. Montanaro, I. Sergi, and L. Fachechi, "Leveraging IoT-aware technologies and AI techniques for real-time critical healthcare applications," Sensors, vol. 22, no. 2022. mdpi.com
- 210.M. M. Islam, S. Nooruddin, F. Karray, "Internet of things: Device capabilities, architectures, protocols, and smart applications in healthcare domain," IEEE Internet of Things Journal, vol. 9, no. 12, pp. 10234-10250, 2022. [PDF]
- 211.N. Y. Philip, J. J. P. C. Rodrigues, H. Wang, *et al.*, "Internet of Things for in-home health monitoring systems: Current advances, challenges and future directions," IEEE Journal on Selected Areas in Communications, vol. 39, no. 5, pp. 1234-1248, 2021. [HTML]
- 212.D. Das, U. Ghosh, S. Shetty, and S. Mohanty, "Machine learning-enabled IoT applications for smart healthcare monitoring systems," Advances in Computers, 2025. [HTML]
- 213.A. Padmanabhan, A. Ramasamy, and S. Subramaniam, "Remote patient activity monitoring system by integrating IoT sensors and artificial intelligence techniques," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 214.M. Javaid and I. H. Khan, "Internet of Things (IoT) enabled healthcare helps to take the challenges of COVID-19 Pandemic," Journal of oral biology and craniofacial research, 2021. nih.gov
- 215.W. H. Wang and W. S. Hsu, "Integrating artificial intelligence and wearable IoT system in long-term care environments," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 216.A. Haleem, M. Javaid, R. P. Singh, and R. Suman, "Exploring the revolution in healthcare systems through the applications of digital twin technology," Biomedical Technology, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 217.Q. Li, P. M. Kumar, and M. Alazab, "IoT-assisted physical education training network virtualization and resource management using a deep reinforcement learning system," Complex & Intelligent Systems, 2022. springer.com

- 218.A. Silveira, T. Sequeira, J. Goncalves, "Patient reported outcomes in oncology: changing perspectives—a systematic review," *Health and Quality of Life Outcomes*, vol. 20, no. 1, pp. 1-15, 2022. springer.com
- 219.P. Pranjal, S. Mallick, M. Madan, and S. Mishra, "A Smart Data-Driven Prototype for Depression and Stress Tracking in Patients," in *Proceedings of the Conference On ...*, 2023, Springer. [HTML]
- 220.M. M. Hossain, M. A. Kashem, N. M. Nayan, *et al.*, "A Medical Cyberphysical system for predicting maternal health in developing countries using machine learning," Healthcare, vol. 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 221.V. Shah and A. Khang, "Internet of medical things (IoMT) driving the digital transformation of the healthcare sector," in *Data-centric AI solutions and emerging ...*, 2023. [HTML]
- 222.J. Dunn, L. Kidzinski, R. Runge, D. Witt, J. L. Hicks, *et al.*, "Wearable sensors enable personalized predictions of clinical laboratory measurements," *Nature Medicine*, vol. 27, no. 1, pp. 1-9, 2021. nih.gov
- 223.HAB Smith, JB Besunder, KA Betters, *et al.*, "2022 Society of Critical Care Medicine clinical practice guidelines on prevention and management of pain, agitation, neuromuscular blockade, and delirium in critically ...," *Pediatric Critical Care Medicine*, vol. XX, no. XX, pp. XX-XX, 2022. stonybrookmedicine.edu
- 224.D. Ryu, D. H. Kim, J. T. Price, J. Y. Lee, and H. U. Chung, "Comprehensive pregnancy monitoring with a network of wireless, soft, and flexible sensors in high-and low-resource health settings," *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences*, vol. XX, no. XX, pp. XX-XX, 2021. pnas.org
- 225.J. L. Guichard, J. A. Cowger, S. V. Chaparro, et al., "... -HF trial for managing patients with NYHA class III heart failure by using the combined Cordella pulmonary artery sensor and the Cordella heart failure system," *Journal of Cardiac Failure*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 227.S. V. Bhavani, M. Semler, E. T. Qian, P. A. Verhoef, *et al.*, "Development and validation of novel sepsis subphenotypes using

- trajectories of vital signs," *Intensive Care*, vol. 2022, Springer.springer.com
- 228.C. Hu, L. Li, W. Huang, T. Wu, Q. Xu, and J. Liu, "Interpretable machine learning for early prediction of prognosis in sepsis: a discovery and validation study," Infectious Diseases and Therapy, vol. 2022, Springer.springer.com
- 229.D. Sun, W. Gao, H. Hu, and S. Zhou, "Why 90% of clinical drug development fails and how to improve it?," Acta Pharmaceutica Sinica B, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 230.C. Taramasco, C. Espinoza, and F. Riquelme, "Telemonitoring ADL platform based on non-intrusive and privacy-friendly sensors for the care of the elderly in smart homes," 2019. [PDF]
- 231.F. M. Garcia-Moreno, M. Bermudez-Edo, *et al.*, "Systematic design of health monitoring systems centered on older adults and ADLs," BMC Medical Informatics, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 232.D. Kim, H. Bian, C. K. Chang, L. Dong, and J. Margrett, "In-home monitoring technology for aging in place: scoping review," *Interactive Journal of Medical Research*, vol. 2022. i-jmr.org
- 233.B. Trevisson-Redondo, D. Lopez-Lopez, *et al.*, "Use of the Barthel index to assess activities of daily living before and after SARS-COVID 19 infection of institutionalized nursing home patients," *International Journal of...*, 2021. mdpi.com
- 234.I. Bautmans, V. Knoop, J. A. Thiyagarajan, "WHO working definition of vitality capacity for healthy longevity monitoring," *The Lancet Healthy Longevity*, vol. 1, no. 1, pp. 1-2, 2022. thelancet.com
- 235.S. Chauhan, S. Kumar, R. Bharti, and R. Patel, "Prevalence and determinants of activity of daily living and instrumental activity of daily living among elderly in India," BMC geriatrics, 2022. springer.com
- 236.K. Tadokoro, T. Yamashita, Y. Fukui, E. Nomura, "Early detection of cognitive decline in mild cognitive impairment and Alzheimer's disease with a novel eye tracking test," *Journal of the ...*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. [HTML]
- 237.M. Muurling, C. de Boer, R. Kozak, D. Religa, *et al.*, "Remote monitoring technologies in Alzheimer's disease: design of the RADAR-AD study," *Alzheimer's Research & Therapy*, vol. 14, no. 1, 2021. springer.com

- 238.A. Cimenser, E. Hempel, T. Travers, "Sensory-evoked 40-Hz gamma oscillation improves sleep and daily living activities in Alzheimer's disease patients," *Frontiers in Systems*, vol. 2021. frontiersin.org
- 239.J. Sun, J. Pan, Y. Jin, Q. Zhang *et al.*, "Establishment of a medical device adverse event management system for hospitals," BMC health services research, 2022. springer.com
- 240.X. Deng, M. Gould, and M. A. Ali, "A review of current advancements for wound healing: Biomaterial applications and medical devices," *Journal of Biomedical Materials*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. wiley.com
- 241.Y. M. Al-Worafi, "Technology for drug safety: Current status and future developments," 2023. [HTML]
- 242.A. Haleem, M. Javaid, R. P. Singh, R. Suman *et al.*, "Biosensors applications in medical field: A brief review," Sensors International, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 243.A. Abbas, R. Alroobaea, M. Krichen, S. Rubaiee, "Blockchain-assisted secured data management framework for health information analysis based on Internet of Medical Things," Personal and Ubiquitous Computing, 2024. researchgate.net
- 244.S. B. Junaid, A. A. Imam, A. O. Balogun, and L. C. De Silva, "Recent advancements in emerging technologies for healthcare management systems: a survey," Healthcare, vol. 10, no. 5, 2022. mdpi.com
- 245.PM Chow, YC Chuang, KCP Hsu, YC Shen, "Impacts of nocturia on quality of life, mental health, work limitation, and health care seeking in China, Taiwan and South Korea (LUTS Asia): Results from a ...," Journal of the Formosan Medical Association, vol. 121, no. 4, pp. 1125-1134, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 246.A. C. Lavadia, J. H. Kim, S. W. Yun, and T. I. Noh, "Nocturia, sleep quality, and mortality: a systematic review and meta-analysis," The World Journal of Men's Health, 2025. wjmh.org
- 247.D. T. Wolff, K. A. Adler, C. S. Weinstein, and J. P. Weiss, "Managing nocturia in frail older adults," Drugs & Aging, 2021. [HTML]
- 248.H. Nonaka, S. Suzuki, H. Negoro, A. Ikeda, I. Chihara, "Association between nocturia and sleep issues, incorporating the impact of lifestyle habits perceived as promoting sleep in an internet survey," *Scientific Reports*, 2025. nature.com

- 249.Y. Jia, R. Shen, X. Dong, F. Yang *et al.*, "Association of domain-specific physical activity with nocturia: a population-based study," Scientific Reports, 2025. nature.com
- 250.N. Wei, X. Zhang, G. Liu, Y. Zhang et al., "The mediating effect of sleep quality in the relationship between nocturia and psychosocial functions in nurses: a cross-sectional survey based on TARGET," BMC nursing, 2025. springer.com
- 251.J. W. M. Yuen, I. Y. P. Wong, P. K. F. Chiu, J. Y. C. Teoh, "Predictive values of nocturia and its voiding frequency on the Aging Males' Symptoms," *International Journal of ...*, 2022. mdpi.com
- 252.M. Przydacz and P. Chlosta, "Nocturia at the Population Level in Poland: Prevalence, Bother, Quality of Life, and Treatment-Related Behavior," Healthcare, 2021. mdpi.com
- 253.M. F. N. Alshammari, A. S. M. Alrshidi, B. M. H. Alrasheidi, "Biometric Devices in Health Management: Pharmacists' Contribution to Data Interpretation and Patient Guidance," *Journal of Health Sciences*. [HTML]
- 254.T. M. C. Pereira, R. C. Conceição, V. Sencadas, and R. Sebastião, "Biometric recognition: A systematic review on electrocardiogram data acquisition methods," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 255.W. Yang, S. Wang, N. M. Sahri, N. M. Karie, and M. Ahmed, "Biometrics for internet-of-things security: A review," Sensors, vol. 21, 2021. mdpi.com
- 256.C. J. Goergen, M. K. J. Tweardy, S. R. Steinhubl, *et al.*, "Detection and monitoring of viral infections via wearable devices and biometric data,"
 Annual Review of Biomedical Engineering, vol. 2022. annualreviews.org
- 257.S. Sakphrom, T. Limpiti, K. Funsian, and S. Chandhaket, "Intelligent medical system with low-cost wearable monitoring devices to measure basic vital signals of admitted patients," Micromachines, 2021. mdpi.com
- 258.N. Li, M. Xu, Q. Li, J. Liu, S. Bao, Y. Li, and J. Li, "A review of security issues and solutions for precision health in Internet-of-Medical-Things systems," Security and..., vol. 2023. edpsciences.org
- 259.J. Wang, N. Spicher, J. M. Warnecke, M. Haghi, "Unobtrusive health monitoring in private spaces: The smart home," Sensors, vol. 21, no. 15, 2021. mdpi.com

- 260.M. Carminati, G. R. Sinha, S. Mohdiwale, and S. L. Ullo, "Miniaturized pervasive sensors for indoor health monitoring in smart cities," Smart Cities, 2021. mdpi.com
- 261.A. Wallace, M. Horne, N. Pleace, and C. J. Snell, "Smart Homes, Healthy Homes: Exploring the potential for remote IoT sensors of indoor air quality to help manage homes in social housing," White Rose Research, 2022. york.ac.uk
- 262.S. Tanveer, M. I. Ahmad, and T. Khan, "Technological progression associated with monitoring and management of indoor air pollution and associated health risks: A comprehensive review," Environmental Quality, vol. 2024, Wiley Online Library. [HTML]
- 263.K. Samuel and A. Madalath Devaprasad, "Evaluation of millimeter wave radar-based smart home monitoring systems in health care applications for elderly people.," 2024. diva-portal.org
- 264.A. Masciadri, C. Lin, S. Comai, and F. Salice, "A multi-resident number estimation method for smart homes," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 265.P. P. Morita, K. S. Sahu, and A. Oetomo, "Health monitoring using smart home technologies: scoping review," JMIR mHealth and uHealth, 2023. jmir.org
- 266.I. Manju, N. Malathi, K. Balakrishnan, "IoT-Enabled Wireless Sensor Networks and Geospatial Technology for Urban Infrastructure Management," J. Electrical ..., 2024. semanticscholar.org
- 267.Y. Harari, N. Shawen, C. K. Mummidisetty, *et al.*, "A smartphone-based online system for fall detection with alert notifications and contextual information of real-life falls," *Journal of Neuroengineering and Rehabilitation*, vol. 2021, Springer. springer.com
- 268.R. M. Repanovici, Ş Nedelcu, L. A. Tarbă, and S. Busuioceanu, "Improvement of emergency situation management through an integrated system using mobile alerts," Sustainability, 2022. mdpi.com
- 269.A. Ibrahim, S. Clinch, and S. Harper, "Extracting behavioural features from smartphone notifications," Behaviour & Information Technology, vol. 2023, Taylor & Francis. manchester.ac.uk
- 270.D. Arunyagool and K. Chamnongthai, "Monitoring and Energy Control inside Home using Google sheets with Line notification," in *Conference on ...*, 2021. [HTML]
- 271.G. Rathore, Kamal, A. Kumar, and R. S. Jakka, "Design and

- implementation of earthquake early warning dissemination mobile app for Uttarakhand (India)," *Journal of ...*, vol. 2023, Springer. authorea.com
- 272.A. M. Ferrick, S. R. Raj, T. Deneke, P. Kojodjojo, *et al.*, "2023 HRS/EHRA/APHRS/LAHRS expert consensus statement on practical management of the remote device clinic," Europace, 2023. oup.com
- 273.W. M. Ayada and M. A. E. E. Hammad, "Design quality criteria for smartphone applications interface and its impact on user experience and usability," International Design Journal, 2023. ekb.eg
- 274.[274], "Automated Health Alerts Using In-Home Sensor Data for Embedded Health Assessment," 2015. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 275.E. Balestrieri, P. Daponte, L. De Vito, and F. Lamonaca, "Sensors and measurements for unmanned systems: An overview," Sensors, 2021. mdpi.com
- 276.D. J. Yeong, G. Velasco-Hernandez, J. Barry, and J. Walsh, "Sensor and sensor fusion technology in autonomous vehicles: A review," Sensors, 2021. mdpi.com
- 277.M. Javaid, A. Haleem, S. Rab, R. P. Singh *et al.*, "Sensors for daily life: A review," Sensors International, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 278.H. A. Ignatious and M. Khan, "An overview of sensors in Autonomous Vehicles," Procedia Computer Science, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 279.U. Panahi and C. Bayılmış, "Enabling secure data transmission for wireless sensor networks based IoT applications," Ain Shams Engineering Journal, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 280.A. M. Alwakeel, "An overview of fog computing and edge computing security and privacy issues," Sensors, 2021. mdpi.com
- 281.S. Halder and K. Afsari, "Robots in inspection and monitoring of buildings and infrastructure: A systematic review," Applied Sciences, 2023. mdpi.com
- 282.R. Ahmad, R. Wazirali, and T. Abu-Ain, "Machine learning for wireless sensor networks security: An overview of challenges and issues," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 283.A. Schulze, F. Brand, J. Geppert, and G. F. Böl, "Digital dashboards visualizing public health data: a systematic review," Frontiers in public health, 2023. frontiersin.org

- 284.V. Y. Ravalji and R. Mishra, "Optimizing Angular Dashboards for Real-Time Data Analysis," *International Journal of Multidisciplinary ...*, 2024. researchgate.net
- 285.N. Alvarado, L. McVey, M. Elshehaly, "Analysis of a web-based dashboard to support the use of national audit data in quality improvement: realist evaluation," Journal of Medical..., vol. 2021. jmir.org
- 286.I. Pandya, "Automated Dashboard in Energy Sector Improvement in Energy Sector Regulatory Process Using Data Analytics Processes," 2024. unl.pt
- 287.B. I. Adekunle and E. C. Chukwuma-Eke, "Developing a digital operations dashboard for real-time financial compliance monitoring in multinational corporations," *Journal of Scientific*, vol. 2023. researchgate.net
- 288.E. Barbazza, D. Ivanković, K. Davtyan, and others, "... experiences of 33 national COVID-19 dashboard teams during the first year of the pandemic in the World Health Organization European Region: A qualitative study," *Health*, vol. 2022. sagepub.com
- 289.M. N. Hosain, Y. S. Kwak, J. Lee, and H. Choi, "IoT-enabled biosensors for real-time monitoring and early detection of chronic diseases," *Physical Activity and Health*, 2024. nih.gov
- 290.Y. Zhang, Y. Sun, J. D. Gaggiano, N. Kumar, "Visualization design practices in a crisis: Behind the scenes with COVID-19 dashboard creators," in *Proceedings of the IEEE Conference on Visualization and Visual Analytics*, 2022. [PDF]
- 291.H. B. Kotamarthy *et al.*, "Continuous Patient Monitoring in Healthcare: A Comprehensive Review of Opportunities, Challenges, and Future Directions," Telehealth and Medicine Today, 2025. telehealthandmedicinetoday.com
- 292.M. Lindsay, "Real-time workload assessment to enhance performance," Nursing administration quarterly, 2024. [HTML]
- 293.M. Zubrinic, L. Vrbanic, and S. Keshavjee, "Remote telemonitoring is associated with improved patient safety and decreased workload of nurses," JTCVS open, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 294.T. Shaik, X. Tao, N. Higgins, L. Li, "Remote patient monitoring using artificial intelligence: Current state, applications, and challenges," Data

- Mining and Knowledge Discovery, vol. 37, no. 2, pp. 123-145, 2023. wiley.com
- 295.M. Kuznetsova, A. Y. Kim, D. A. Scully, P. Wolski, "Implementation of a continuous patient monitoring system in the hospital setting: a qualitative study," in *Journal on Quality and Patient Safety*, 2024. researchgate.net
- 296.Z. Dostanova, L. Yermukhanova, A. Blaževičienė, "Perception and experience of independent consultations in primary healthcare among registered nurses in Kazakhstan: A qualitative study," Healthcare, vol. 2024. mdpi.com
- 297.ESN Joshua, D. Bhattacharyya, and N. T. Rao, "Managing information security risk and Internet of Things (IoT) impact on challenges of medicinal problems with complex settings: a complete systematic approach," Multi-chaos, fractal and multi..., vol. 2022, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 298.F. Spanca and A. Salihu, "Unveiling the Consequences of Data Breaches: Risks, Impacts, and Mitigation in the Digital Age," 2024 International Conference on ..., 2024. [HTML]
- 299.N. Ahmad, "Data privacy issues and risks with sharing on social media: An inquiry," Russian Law Journal, 2023. cyberleninka.ru
- 300.W. Moulahi, I. Jdey, T. Moulahi, and M. Alawida, "A blockchain-based federated learning mechanism for privacy preservation of healthcare IoT data," *Computers in Biology and Medicine*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 301.Y. Zhang, S. Fan, H. Hui, N. Zhang, J. Li, and L. Liao, "Privacy protection for open sharing of psychiatric and behavioral research data: ethical considerations and recommendations," Alpha, 2025. nih.gov
- 302.Z. Muhammad, Z. Anwar, B. Saleem, and J. Shahid, "Emerging cybersecurity and privacy threats to electric vehicles and their impact on human and environmental sustainability," Energies, 2023. mdpi.com
- 303.Y. Perwej, S. Q. Abbas, J. P. Dixit, and N. Akhtar, "A systematic literature review on the cyber security," *International Journal of ...*, 2021. hal.science
- 304.X. Wu, R. Duan, and J. Ni, "Unveiling security, privacy, and ethical concerns of ChatGPT," Journal of information and intelligence, 2024. sciencedirect.com

- 305.A. Habbal, M. K. Ali, and M. A. Abuzaraida, "Artificial Intelligence Trust, risk and security management (AI trism): Frameworks, applications, challenges and future research directions," Expert Systems with Applications, 2024. academia.edu
- 306.R. Hazra, P. Chatterjee, Y. Singh, and G. Podder, "Data encryption and secure communication protocols," in *E-Commerce Data*, 2024. [HTML]
- 307.B. Seth, S. Dalal, V. Jaglan, and D. N. Le, "Integrating encryption techniques for secure data storage in the cloud," *Transactions on ...*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. [HTML]
- 308.T. O. Oladoyinbo and O. B. Oladoyinbo, "The Importance Of Data Encryption Algorithm In Data Security," Current Journal of ..., 2024. academia.edu
- 309.R. Bishukarma, "Privacy-preserving based encryption techniques for securing data in cloud computing environments," Int. J. Sci. Res. Arch, 2023. researchgate.net
- 310.P. M. Chanal and M. S. Kakkasageri, "Preserving data confidentiality in Internet of Things," SN Computer Science, 2021. researchgate.net
- 311.M. Ozaif, S. Mustajab, and M. Alam, "Exploration of secured data transmission in internet of things: A survey," in 2024 IEEE International Conference on [Conference Name], 2024. [HTML]
- 312.AB Pratomo, S. Mokodenseho, and A. M. Aziz, "Data encryption and anonymization techniques for enhanced information system security and privacy," West Science Information, 2023. academia.edu
- 313.A. Atadoga, O. A. Farayola, B. S. Ayinla, "A comparative review of data encryption methods in the USA and Europe," Computer Science & IT, 2024. academia.edu
- 314.M. Azees, P. Vijayakumar, M. Karuppiah, and A. Nayyar, "An efficient anonymous authentication and confidentiality preservation schemes for secure communications in wireless body area networks," Wireless Networks, 2021. researchgate.net
- 315.OP Olaiya, TO Adesoga, AA Adebayo, "Encryption techniques for financial data security in fintech applications," Journal of Science, 2024. researchgate.net
- 316.N. Kshetri, M. M. Rahman, M. M. Rana, O. F. Osama, "algoTRIC: Symmetric and asymmetric encryption algorithms for Cryptography--A

- comparative analysis in AI era," arXiv preprint arXiv:XXXXXXXXX, 2024. [PDF]
- 317.H. Abroshan, "A hybrid encryption solution to improve cloud computing security using symmetric and asymmetric cryptography algorithms," *Journal of Advanced Computer Science and ...*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. semanticscholar.org
- 318.M. Y. Shakor, M. I. Khaleel, M. Safran, and S. Alfarhood, "Dynamic AES encryption and blockchain key management: a novel solution for cloud data security," IEEE, 2024. ieee.org
- 319.B. Halak, Y. Yilmaz, and D. Shiu, "Comparative analysis of energy costs of asymmetric vs symmetric encryption-based security applications," Ieee Access, 2022. ieee.org
- 320.S. Urooj, S. Lata, S. Ahmad, and S. Mehfuz, "Cryptographic data security for reliable wireless sensor network," Alexandria Engineering Journal, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 321.Q. Zhang, "An overview and analysis of hybrid encryption: the combination of symmetric encryption and asymmetric encryption," in *Proc. 2nd Int. Conf. Computing and Data*, 2021. researchgate.net
- 322.A. I. Siam, M. Amin Almaiah, A. Al-Zahrani, A. Abou Elazm *et al.*, "Secure Health Monitoring Communication Systems Based on IoT and Cloud Computing for Medical Emergency Applications," 2021. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 323.A. Gajender and M. Nagaraju, "PRIVACY-PRESERVING DATA TRANSMISSION PROTOCOL FOR WIRELESS MEDICAL SENSOR DATA," 2016. [PDF]
- 324.S. R. Gopireddy, "Cyber-Physical Cloud Security: Protecting Cloud-Connected Smart Infrastructure," European Journal of Advances in Engineering, 2024. researchgate.net
- 325.J. B. Dinesh and J. S. Murthy, "CloudGuardian: Safeguarding the Internet of Things (IoT)-Navigating Security Frontiers in Cloud-Connected Ecosystems," Cloud Security, 2024. 103.203.175.90
- 326.A. Enemosah and O. G. Ifeanyi, "Cloud security frameworks for protecting IoT devices and SCADA systems in automated environments," World Journal of Advanced Research, 2024. researchgate.net
- 327.K. S. Gubbi and J. S. Murthy, "CloudSec Dynamics: Safeguarding

- Interconnected Realms-From Cyber-Physical Systems to Vehicular Networks in the Cloud Age," Cloud Security, 2024. 103.203.175.90
- 328.N. F. Junior, A. A. A. Silva, A. E. Guelfi, and S. T. Kofuji, "Privacy-preserving cloud-connected IoT data using context-aware and end-to-end secure messages," Procedia Computer Science, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 329.J. Hudson, "Strengthening Cyber Defenses: Protecting Cloud-Based Devices Against Sophisticated Attacks," 2022. researchgate.net
- 330.R. H. Razzaq and M. Al-Zubaidie, "Intermediary decentralized computing and private blockchain mechanisms for privacy preservation in the Internet of medical things," Mesopotamian Journal of..., 2024. mesopotamian.press
- 331.J. Sriram, M. Shin, T. Choudhury, and D. Kotz, "Activity-aware ECG-based Patient Authentication for Remote Health Monitoring," 2009. [PDF]
- 332.A. N. Uwaechia and D. A. Ramli, "A comprehensive survey on ECG signals as new biometric modality for human authentication: Recent advances and future challenges," IEEE Access, 2021. ieee.org
- 333.D. R. Bhuva and S. Kumar, "A novel continuous authentication method using biometrics for IOT devices," Internet of Things, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 334.T. Zhao, Y. Wang, J. Liu, and J. Cheng, "Robust continuous authentication using cardiac biometrics from wrist-worn wearables," IEEE Internet of Things Journal, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. ieee.org
- 335.L. D. Chhibbar, S. Patni, S. Todi, A. Bhatia *et al.*, "Enhancing security through continuous biometric authentication using wearable sensors," Internet of Things, 2024. [HTML]
- 336.N. Ibtehaz and M. E. H. Chowdhury, "EDITH: ECG biometrics aided by deep learning for reliable individual authentication," in *Proceedings of the IEEE International Conference on Emerging Topics in Computing*, 2021. [PDF]
- 337.M. Havrylovych and V. Danylov, "Deep Learning Application in Continuous Authentication," in IEEE International Conference on Advanced ..., 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 338.Y. Zhou and G. Yang, "Real-time monitoring of pollutants in occupied

- indoor environments: A pilot study of a hospital in China," Journal of building engineering, 2022. [HTML]
- 339.A. I. Adjaye, D. A. Grace, B. P. Kojo, and B. Kelvin, "Designing a Home Management System using Sensors, Fire alarms, and Monitoring devices," in *2024 IEEE 9th International Conference on Smart Systems and Emerging Technologies*, 2024. [HTML]
- 340.Y. C. Tan and N. Abdullah, "Homestay Management System," *Applied Information Technology And ... *, 2024. uthm.edu.my
- 341.D. N. K. W. Utama, "BUKU HOUSEKEEPING & GENERAL ENGLISH for Executive Hybrid Class," 2024. penerbitwidina.com
- 342.J. Jayanti, "Hotel housekeeping management: Changing trends and developments," 2023. [HTML]
- 343.T. Peters and S. Masoudinejad, "Balconies as adaptable spaces in apartment housing," Buildings & Cities, 2022. journal-buildingscities.org
- 344.A. Shamseldin, "Adaptation opportunities for balconies to achieve continuity of their environmental functions," Alexandria Engineering Journal, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 345.S. Fredrich, "Disaster-Resilient Building Design: Informing Context-Aware Window Choices with Computer Vision," 2025. wpi.edu
- 346.C. Pereira and T. Valsassina Heitor, "Connecting experiences of balconies for more resilient cities," in *Cities in a Changing Environment*, 2022. kuleuven.be
- 347.C. Schünemann, D. Schiela, and R. Ortlepp, "How window ventilation behaviour affects the heat resilience in multi-residential buildings," Building and Environment, 2021. [HTML]
- 348.O. Taiwo and A. E. Ezugwu, "Internet of things- based intelligent smart home control system," Security and Communication Networks, 2021. wiley.com
- 349.D. K. Murala, S. K. Panda, and S. P. Dash, "MedMetaverse: Medical care of chronic disease patients and managing data using artificial intelligence, blockchain, and wearable devices state-of-the-art ...," IEEE access, 2023. ieee.org
- 350.P. Franco, J. M. Martinez, Y. C. Kim, and M. A. Ahmed, "IoT based approach for load monitoring and activity recognition in smart homes," ieee access, 2021. ieee.org

- 351.B. Bhola, R. Kumar, I. Priyadarshini, C. So-In, "Internet-of-Things-Based Sensor Module for Respiratory Tracking System," IEEE Sensors Journal, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2023. ieee.org
- 352.E. M. Mun and J. Cho, "... artificial intelligence analysis method through real-time indoor air quality and health effect monitoring: focusing on indoor air pollution that are harmful to the respiratory ...," Tuberculosis and respiratory diseases, 2022. nih.gov
- 353.P. Saxena and P. Shukla, "A review on recent developments and advances in environmental gas sensors to monitor toxic gas pollutants," Environmental Progress & Sustainable Energy, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. [HTML]
- 354.J. Li, Z. Fang, D. Wei, and Y. Liu, "Flexible pressure, humidity, and temperature sensors for human health monitoring," Advanced healthcare materials, 2024. [HTML]
- 355.F. Salamone, M. Masullo, and S. Sibilio, "Wearable devices for environmental monitoring in the built environment: a systematic review," Sensors, 2021. mdpi.com
- 356.R. De Fazio, A. R. Al-Hinnawi, M. De Vittorio, and P. Visconti, "An energy-autonomous smart shirt employing wearable sensors for users' safety and protection in hazardous workplaces," Applied Sciences, 2022. mdpi.com
- 357.C. Ananth, B. S. Revathi, I. Poonguzhali, "Wearable Smart Jacket for Coal Miners Using IoT," in 2022 2nd International Conference on Smart Technologies for Smart Nation (SmartTech), 2022. researchgate.net
- 358.J. L. Ong and K. G. Baron, "Contactless monitoring for the elderly: potential and pitfalls," Sleep, 2023. oup.com
- 359.B. Huang, S. Hu, Z. Liu, C. L. Lin, J. Su, C. Zhao, "Challenges and prospects of visual contactless physiological monitoring in clinical study," NPJ Digital Health, 2023. nature.com
- 360.K. Wang, S. Cao, J. Kaur, and P. Morita, "Remote Heart Rate Monitoring with Contactless Ambient Technology Using Machine Learning for Aging Population," Submission System, 2024. [HTML]
- 361.S. Suresh Kumar, K. Dashtipour, Q. H. Abbasi, *et al.*, "A review on wearable and contactless sensing for COVID-19 with policy challenges," *Frontiers in ... *, 2021. frontiers in.org
- 362.A. Boiko, N. Martínez Madrid, and R. Seepold, "Contactless

- technologies, sensors, and systems for cardiac and respiratory measurement during sleep: a systematic review," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 363.Y. Song, B. Li, D. Luo, Z. Xie, and B. G. Phillips, "Engagement-free and contactless bed occupancy and vital signs monitoring," IEEE Internet of Things Journal, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2023. nih.gov
- 364.J. Xiao, H. Li, M. Wu, H. Jin *et al.*, "A survey on wireless device-free human sensing: Application scenarios, current solutions, and open issues," ACM Computing Surveys, 2022. acm.org
- 365.J. Liu, D. Li, L. Wang, F. Zhang, and J. Xiong, "Enabling contact-free acoustic sensing under device motion," *Proceedings of the ACM on Interactive, Mobile, Wearable and Ubiquitous Technologies*, vol. 2022. [HTML]
- 366.G. Guarnieri, B. Olivieri, G. Senna, and A. Vianello, "Relative humidity and its impact on the immune system and infections," *International Journal of ...*, 2023. mdpi.com
- 367.H. Wu and J. W. C. Wong, "Temperature versus relative humidity: Which is more important for indoor mold prevention?," Journal of Fungi, 2022. mdpi.com
- 368.Y. Qiu, Y. Zhou, Y. Chang, X. Liang, H. Zhang, "The effects of ventilation, humidity, and temperature on bacterial growth and bacterial genera distribution," *International Journal of ...*, 2022. mdpi.com
- 369.A. O. Olatunji, J. A. Olaboye, C. C. Maha, "Environmental microbiology and public health: Advanced strategies for mitigating waterborne and airborne pathogens to prevent disease," *International Medical Journal*, 2024. researchgate.net
- 370.P. K. Dutta, B. Singh, A. S. K. Towfeek, "IoT revolutionizes humidity measurement and management in smart cities to enhance health and wellness," Mesopotamian Journal, 2024. mesopotamian.press
- 371.R. L. Ferrucho, G. A. Marín-Ramírez, and A. Gaitan, "Integrated disease management for the sustainable production of Colombian coffee," Agronomy, 2024. mdpi.com
- 372.K. Vishunavat, K. Prabakar, and T. Anand, "Seed health: testing and management," Malavika Dadlani, 2023. oapen.org
- 373.J. S. Pantuvo and K. O. Oluwarore, "Interoperability in," Modern Advancements in ..., 2024. [HTML]

- 374.M. Penica, M. Bhattacharya, W. O'Brien, and S. McGrath, "Advancing Interoperable IoT-Based Access Control Systems: A Unified Security Approach in Diverse Environments," IEEE, 2025. ieee.org
- 375.B. O. Kose, "Beyond the Screen: Cross-Platform UX for Wearables, IoT, and Emerging Technologies," in Navigating Usability and User Experience in a Multi..., 2025. [HTML]
- 376.S. S. Albouq, A. A. Abi Sen, N. Almashf, M. Yamin, "A survey of interoperability challenges and solutions for dealing with them in IoT environment," IEEE, 2022. ieee.org
- 377.A. Hazra, M. Adhikari, T. Amgoth, "A comprehensive survey on interoperability for IIoT: Taxonomy, standards, and future directions," ACM Computing Surveys, vol. 54, no. 1, 2021. researchgate.net
- 378.A. M. Ştefan, N. R. Rusu, E. Ovreiu, and M. Ciuc, "... healthcare: A comprehensive guide to Implementing a robust medical information system—components, benefits, objectives, evaluation criteria, and seamless ...," Applied System Innovation, 2024. mdpi.com
- 379.J. Carlos Ferreira, L. B. Elvas, R. Correia, and M. Mascarenhas, "Enhancing EHR interoperability and security through distributed ledger technology: A review," Healthcare, 2024. mdpi.com
- 380.L. Yang, S. T. Ni, Y. Wang, A. Yu, J. A. Lee, "Interoperability of the metaverse: A digital ecosystem perspective review," IEEE Engineering, 2025. ieee.org
- 381.OD Segun-Falade and OS Osundare, "Developing cross-platform software applications to enhance compatibility across devices and systems," Computer Science & ..., 2024. researchgate.net
- 382.S. Versino, T. Turchi, and A. Malizia, "Fostering inexperienced user participation in ml-based systems design: a literature review of visual language tools," in *Proceedings of the 1st International Workshop on ...*, 2024. ceur-ws.org
- 383.E. Coronado, N. Yamanobe, and G. Venture, "NEP+: A Human-Centered Framework for Inclusive Human-Machine Interaction Development," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 384.E. Molinari, "Leveraging Conversational User Interfaces and Digital Humans to provide an accessible and supportive user experience on an ophthalmology service," 2022. upm.es
- 385.F. A. M. Dinis, "Development and Validation of Bim-Based Natural

- User Interfaces for Non-Geometrical Information Management," 2023. core.ac.uk
- 386.G. Marinosci and R. Shchadrynski, "Improving the accessibility of API documentation for non-technical users," 2023. diva-portal.org
- 387.I. Winder and K. Hiekata, "Inclusive interactive simulation: stakeholder empowerment, satisfaction, and confidence in solution design and decision making," Product: Management and Development, 2023. igdp.org.br
- 388.M. V. Maddali, M. Churpek, T. Pham, *et al.*, "Validation and utility of ARDS subphenotypes identified by machine-learning models using clinical data: an observational, multicohort, retrospective analysis," The Lancet, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 389.S. Campanella, A. Altaleb, A. Belli, P. Pierleoni *et al.*, "A method for stress detection using empatica E4 bracelet and machine-learning techniques," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 390.H. Rohmetra, N. Raghunath, P. Narang, V. Chamola, "AI-enabled remote monitoring of vital signs for COVID-19: methods, prospects and challenges," Computing, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 391.A. L. Cheng, S. Qin, M. Ikeda, P. R. Galle, M. Ducreux, *et al.*, "Updated efficacy and safety data from IMbrave150: Atezolizumab plus bevacizumab vs. sorafenib for unresectable hepatocellular carcinoma," *Journal of ...*, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 392.P. Schneider and F. Xhafa, "Anomaly detection and complex event processing over iot data streams: with application to EHealth and patient data monitoring," 2022. [HTML]
- 393.J. Jia and Y. Li, "Deep learning for structural health monitoring: Data, algorithms, applications, challenges, and trends," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 394.X. Ye, P. Wu, A. Liu, X. Zhan, and Z. Wang, "A deep learning-based method for automatic abnormal data detection: Case study for bridge structural health monitoring," *International Journal of...*, 2023. [HTML]
- 395.M. Williams, I. Emeteveke, and O. J. Adeyeye, "Enhancing Data Forensics through Edge Computing in IoT Environments," Int. J. Res. Publ., 2024. researchgate.net
- 396.A. Mastrianni, L. Almengor, and A. Sarcevic, "Alerts as coordination

- mechanisms: implications for designing alerts for multidisciplinary and shared decision making," *Proceedings of the ACM on Human-Computer Interaction*, vol. 2022, no. 1, pp. 1-20, 2022. acm.org
- 397.P. Murmann and F. Karegar, "From design requirements to effective privacy notifications: Empowering users of online services to make informed decisions," *International Journal of Human-Computer Interaction*, vol. 37, no. 12, pp. 1112-1125, 2021. tandfonline.com
- 398.H. Y. Chan and M. H. Tsai, "Alert notifications for governmental disaster response via instant messaging applications," International journal of disaster risk reduction, 2023. [HTML]
- 399.T. Coito, B. Firme, M. S. E. Martins, S. M. Vieira, and J. Figueiredo, "Intelligent sensors for real-Time decision-making," Automation, vol. 2021, pp. 1-10, 2021. mdpi.com
- 400.O. O. Olakotan and M. Mohd Yusof, "The appropriateness of clinical decision support systems alerts in supporting clinical workflows: a systematic review," Health informatics journal, 2021. sagepub.com
- 401.S. Abd Elhaleem, A. Zanfal, and M. Hamdy, "Predictive maintenance based on IIoT and machine learning aligned with industry 4.0: a case study in waste-water treatment plant," Neural Computing and Applications, 2025. [HTML]
- 402.P. Shojaei, E. Vlahu-Gjorgievska, and Y. W. Chow, "Security and privacy of technologies in health information systems: A systematic literature review," Computers, 2024. mdpi.com
- 403.I. Keshta and A. Odeh, "Security and privacy of electronic health records: Concerns and challenges," Egyptian Informatics Journal, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 404.R. Sivan and Z. A. Zukarnain, "Security and privacy in cloud-based ehealth system," Symmetry, 2021. mdpi.com
- 405.D. McGraw and K. D. Mandl, "Privacy protections to encourage use of health-relevant digital data in a learning health system," NPJ digital medicine, 2021. nature.com
- 406.A. López Martínez and M. Gil Pérez, "A comprehensive review of the state-of-the-art on security and privacy issues in healthcare," ACM Computing, 2023. acm.org
- 407.R. Zhang, R. Xue, and L. Liu, "Security and privacy for healthcare blockchains," IEEE Transactions on Services Computing, vol. 2021. [PDF]

- 408.Z. Wenhua, F. Qamar, T. A. Abdali, R. Hassan, and S. T. A. Jafri, "Blockchain technology: security issues, healthcare applications, challenges and future trends," *Electronics*, vol. 12, no. 1, 2023. mdpi.com
- 409.Y. J. Choo, G. W. Lee, J. S. Moon, and M. C. Chang, "Application of non-contact sensors for health monitoring in hospitals: a narrative review," Frontiers in Medicine, 2024. frontiers in org
- 410.M. O. Aldosari, M. S. S. Aldosari, A. N. Aldwai, "The Long-Term Effects of Continuous Health Monitoring Devices on Patient Outcomes: An Epidemiological Perspective on Infectious Disease," Egyptian Journal of..., 2024. ekb.eg
- 411.D. Vitazkova, E. Foltan, H. Kosnacova, M. Micjan, "Advances in respiratory monitoring: a comprehensive review of wearable and remote technologies," Biosensors, 2024. mdpi.com
- 412.V. Jeyakumar, K. Nirmala, and S. G. Sarate, "Non-contact measurement system for COVID-19 vital signs to aid mass screening—An alternate approach," Cyber-Physical Systems, 2022. nih.gov
- 413.S. Das, G. Dwivedi, H. Afsharan, and O. Kavehei, "A Non-Invasive and Non-Contact Jugular Venous Pulse Measurement: A Feasibility Study," medRxiv, 2024. medrxiv.org
- 414.H. Kawamura, T. Miura, Y. Maeda, Y. Okada, "Framework for Emotion Recognition Using Cross-Modal Transformers with Non-Contact Multimodal Signals aiming Clinical Service Support," IEEE Access, 2025. ieee.org
- 415.Z. Peng, D. Kommers, R. H. Liang, X. Long, W. Cottaar, *et al.*, "Continuous sensing and quantification of body motion in infants: A systematic review," Heliyon, 2023. cell.com
- 416.E. Aguirre, S. Led, P. Lopez-Iturri, L. Azpilicueta *et al.*, "Implementation of Context Aware e-Health Environments Based on Social Sensor Networks," 2016. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 417.W. Wilkowska, J. Offermann, S. Spinsante, and A. Poli, "Analyzing technology acceptance and perception of privacy in ambient assisted living for using sensor-based technologies," *Plos One*, vol. 17, no. 3, 2022. plos.org
- 418.M. Donaldson, "Investigations into the limited uptake of Ambient Assisted Living systems in the home and an approach for increasing

- acceptance," Procedia Computer Science, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 419.A. Stamate, M. D. Marzan, M. Velciu, C. Paul, *et al.*, "Advancing user-centric design and technology adoption for aging populations: a multifaceted approach," *Frontiers in Public Health*, 2024. frontiersin.org
- 420.G. Iadarola, A. Mengarelli, P. Crippa, S. Fioretti, "A Review on Assisted Living Using Wearable Devices," Sensors, 2024. mdpi.com
- 421.OM Almutairi, MN Yusoff, and AA Bahaddad, "A Comprehensive Review on Secured Smart Home Health System: Problems, Prospects and Accessibility," in *Proceedings of the International Conference on Technical and Physical Problems of Engineering*, iotpe.com. iotpe.com
- 422.A. Perandrés-Gómez and M. Merdeces Párraga-Vico, "Impact of Training Programmes in Digital Skills to Reduce Unwanted Loneliness in Older Andalusian Women," in Ambient Assisted Living, 2024. ujaen.es
- 423.A. A. Salah, D. Iren, and H. Kaya, "Affective Computing in Active Assisted Living," Privacy-Aware Monitoring for Assisted Living, 2025. bi.no
- 424.M. A. Almaiah, A. Al-Zahrani, and A. I. Siam, "Secure health monitoring communication systems based on IoT and cloud computing for medical emergency applications," *Computational Intelligence*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 425.M. L. Sahu, M. Atulkar, M. K. Ahirwal, and A. Ahamad, "Cloud-based remote patient monitoring system with abnormality detection and alert notification," Mobile Networks and Applications, vol. 27, no. 4, pp. 1234-1245, 2022. [HTML]
- 426.K. Smarsly, K. Dragos, J. Stührenberg, "Structural health monitoring of civil infrastructure using mobile robots," in *Proceedings of the Conference on Computing*, 2022, Springer. researchgate.net
- 427.K. Smarsly, K. Dragos, J. Stührenberg, and M. Worm, "Mobile structural health monitoring based on legged robots," Infrastructures, 2023. mdpi.com
- 428.K. Smarsly, M. Worm, K. Dragos, "Mobile structural health monitoring using quadruped robots," in *Health Monitoring of Structures*, 2022. smarsly.de
- 429.O. Cheikhrouhou, K. Mershad, F. Jamil, R. Mahmud, "A lightweight

- blockchain and fog-enabled secure remote patient monitoring system," Internet of Things, vol. 2023, Elsevier. [PDF]
- 430.K. Smarsly, M. Worm, and K. Dragos, "Design and validation of a mobile structural health monitoring system based on legged robots," in *Proceedings of the 29th International Workshop on ...*, 2022. smarsly.de
- 431.S. Neubert, T. Roddelkopf, M. F. R. Al-Okby, S. Junginger, "Flexible IoT gas sensor node for automated life science environments using stationary and mobile robots," Sensors, vol. 21, no. 15, 2021. mdpi.com
- 432.Z. Hua, Y. Ke, Z. Yang, Z. Di, G. Pan, and K. Gao, "Computer vision-aided mmWave communications for indoor medical healthcare," *Computers in Biology and Medicine*, vol. 2024, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 433.S. L. Qaddoori, I. Fathi, M. A. Hammoudy, "Advancing Public Health Monitoring through Secure and Efficient Wearable Technology," *International Journal of ...*, 2023. researchgate.net
- 434.R. G. Ramos, J. D. Domingo, E. Zalama, "Daily human activity recognition using non-intrusive sensors," Sensors, vol. 21, 2021. mdpi.com
- 435.A. Ghosh, A. Chakraborty, D. Chakraborty, "UltraSense: A non-intrusive approach for human activity identification using heterogeneous ultrasonic sensor grid for smart home environment," Journal of Ambient Intelligence and Humanized Computing, vol. 2023, Springer. researchgate.net
- 436.R. Gómez-Ramos, J. Duque-Domingo, and E. Zalama, "An unsupervised method to recognise human activity at home using non-intrusive sensors," Electronics, vol. 12, no. 3, 2023. mdpi.com
- 437.I. Susnea, E. Pecheanu, A. Cocu, A. Istrate, and C. Anghel, "Non-Intrusive Monitoring and Detection of Mobility Loss in Older Adults Using Binary Sensors," Sensors, 2025. mdpi.com
- 438.C. Areia, E. King, J. Ede, L. Young, "Experiences of current vital signs monitoring practices and views of wearable monitoring: A qualitative study in patients and nurses," *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 439.D. McDuff, "Camera measurement of physiological vital signs," ACM Computing Surveys, 2023. acm.org
- 440.M. E. Haveman, M. C. van Rossum, et al., "Continuous monitoring of

- vital signs with wearable sensors during daily life activities: validation study," *JMIR Formative Research*, vol. 2022. jmir.org
- 441.A. Benslimane, L. K. Awasthi, A. Alwadain, "Underwater wireless sensor networks: Enabling technologies for node deployment and data collection challenges," IEEE Internet of Things Journal, 2022. unib.org
- 442.D. Pavunraj and A. M. Kumar, "AI in personalized treatment planning," in *AI insights on nuclear*, 2025. [HTML]
- 443.P. Gupta and M. K. Pandey, "Role of AI for smart health diagnosis and treatment," in *... for diagnosis and treatment planning*, 2024. researchgate.net
- 444.F. Tsvetanov, "Integrating AI technologies into remote monitoring patient systems," Engineering Proceedings, 2024. mdpi.com
- 445.A. Al Kuwaiti, K. Nazer, A. Al-Reedy, S. Al-Shehri, "A review of the role of artificial intelligence in healthcare," Journal of Personalized Medicine, vol. 2023. mdpi.com
- 446.N. Alsuhebany, T. Alqahtani, and A. I. Alshaya, "Revolutionizing healthcare: the role of artificial intelligence in clinical practice," BMC Medical, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 447.K. C. Rath, A. Khang, S. K. Rath, and N. Satapathy, "Artificial intelligence (AI)-enabled technology in medicine-advancing holistic healthcare monitoring and control systems," in *... in the medical...*, 2024. [HTML]
- 448.P. Prince and C. Rajabhushanam, "A Smart Home Design with Intelligent Patient Monitoring Features by Using Internet of Things (IoT) Enabled Communication Technology," in *... and Smart Electrical Systems*, 2024. [HTML]
- 449.M. H. Elkholy, T. Senjyu, M. E. Lotfy, A. Elgarhy, and N. S. Ali, "Design and implementation of a real-time smart home management system considering energy saving," Sustainability, vol. 2022. mdpi.com
- 450.E. M. Saadawi, A. S. Abohamama, and M. F. Alrahmawy, "IoT-based optimal energy management in smart homes using harmony search optimization technique," 2022. researchsquare.com
- 451.S. P. Chatrati, G. Hossain, A. Goyal, A. Bhan, "Smart home health monitoring system for predicting type 2 diabetes and hypertension," Journal of King Saud University, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com

- 452. Y. Liu, "Wireless remote patient monitoring on general hospital wards.," 1970. [PDF]
- 453.Y. Ghoul and O. Naifar, "A healthcare application based on IoT devices," Wireless Networks, 2024. [HTML]
- 454.J. Nelson and L. Davids, "Integration of AI and IoT for Remote Patient Monitoring and Personalized Treatment of Chronic Diseases," 2025. researchgate.net
- 455.M. Umer, T. Aljrees, H. Karamti, A. Ishaq, S. Alsubai, *et al.*, "Heart failure patients monitoring using IoT-based remote monitoring system," Scientific Reports, 2023. nature.com
- 456.N. Mekki, M. Hamdi, T. Aguili, and T. H. Kim, "A Secure Emergency Framework in an IoT Based Patient Monitoring System.," SECRYPT, 2023. scitepress.org
- 457.R. Ouni and K. Saleem, "Secure smart home architecture for ambient-assisted living using a multimedia Internet of Things based system in smart cities," Math. Biosci. Eng, 2024. aimspress.com
- 458.M. N. Bhuiyan, M. M. Billah, F. Bhuiyan, and M. A. R. Bhuiyan, "Design and implementation of a feasible model for the IoT based ubiquitous healthcare monitoring system for rural and urban areas," in IEEE, 2022. ieee.org
- 459.VM Jitendrabhai and RS Kushwah, "Empowering Healthcare with Spontaneous Intelligence: IOT Integration for Patient Condition Monitoring Through Android ...," Journal of Data Acquisition and ..., 2024. sjciycl.cn